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BOARD COMMlTTEES (Continued)

Management Committee

The two executive directors together with Mr. Michael Shove and Mr. Darren
John Collins are the members of the Management Committee and Mr.

Michael Shove is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and
reviewing the Company's day-to-day operations and financial reporting,
and making recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies
of the Group. The Management Committee meets monthly to discuss the

related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to

the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31st March, 2009.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of

unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'’S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, quarterly results,
price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2009.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent

Auditor’s Report” on page 54.

The non-audit work performed by the external auditor included the annual
review on connected transactions and the tax compliance services. The
remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31st
March, 2009 amounted to approximately HK$2,247,000 and HK$133,250

respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee review
the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system includes a
quarterly representation from senior management in connection with
financial statements and internal control matters, a defined management
structure with limits of authority designed to achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations. The system is designed

to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in

operational systems and achievement of the Company's objectives.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system of the Group. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. The Board in particular considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and

financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s Bye-
laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll procedures are
included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the

proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published in accordance with the Listing Rules and

posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent Board committee, are

available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each

substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of
the Company’'s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an

informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and
updates on the Company'’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are

posted.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yam Ting, Ready

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 10th June, 2009
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The principal activities of its associates and
subsidiaries are set out in notes 17 and 35, respectively, to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009 are set out in

the consolidated income statement on page 56.

An interim dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share amounting to HK$11,889,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors do not

recommend the payment of final dividend (FY08: 6.0 HK cents) and special

dividend (FY08: 11.0 HK cents) in respect of the year ended 31st March, 2009.

Save as disclosed above, subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
directors recommended a special dividend of 92.0 HK cents per share in
relation to the proposed disposal of business which is detailed in note 36,
which will be paid to the shareholders on the register of members on a date
to be fixed by the Board. Further details of such special dividend are set out

in notes 13 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 59 to the

consolidated financial statements.

At 31st March, 2009, the Group's special reserve and accumulated profits
totalled HK$394,678,000 (FY08: HK$414,446,000).

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders at 31st
March, 2009 include contributed surplus net of accumulated losses totalling
HK$88,445,000 (FY08: HK$91,166,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$26,763,000 on property,

plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major

suppliers and customers are as follows:

During the year, the five largest customers and single largest customer of
the Group accounted for approximately 16.2% and 4.6%, respectively, of the
Group's revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest supplier of the
Group accounted for approximately 49.1% and 15.9%, respectively, of the

Group's purchases.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have an interest in any

of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year in share capital of the Company are set out in

note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors
Lai Yam Ting, Ready
Lau Ming Chi, Edward

Non-executive directors
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah

Kuo Chi Yung, Peter

Moo Kwee Chong, John
Michael Shove

Darren John Collins

Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth

Andrew John Anker

Independent non-executive directors
Cheung Man, Stephen

Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Li King Hang, Richard

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99, Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward,
Mr. Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth, Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen and Mr. Li King
Hang, Richard would be retiring from the office of directors. Mr. Lau Ming
Chi, Edward, Mr. Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the period up to

his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

EECANER
FRBIXHERS | AIREEIN ARAZE
EMERARR  AEAZERRQAF RRHMERF
ok P 188 X R P AT 3L 4F 4% H 3k A AT R T AR A
M UARBEBMERBER LA NTEAEM
BEESREZERESER -

ESzROREBRRD 2ER

As at 31st March, 2009, the interests and short positions of the directors R-EBEENF=ZA=1+—"H EFERAQAFTEST
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and BABRARAREAMEREZE (EXRRESHK
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the HEGOIEXVE) 2Rt  HERND RESTHEE
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which ME@IREES RS KRIIEXVIPETRSDEBENE
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange RRRIRBEBMERGAERRR ([HRZF]) 2

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and

8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), to

be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Shares
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% of
Personal Family Corporate shareholding
Name of company Director interests interests interests RERL
ARERE Bz AR REER ARER okt
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting, Ready 4,439,621 - - 4,439,621 1.49%
Holdings Limited BERE
BEBRGEE
BRAA
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 9,271,241 - - 9,271,241 3.12%
BHE
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting, Ready 1,070,000 - 1,070,000 N/A?
(HK) Limited BEE
BEER (FE)
ARRA
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 2,140,000' = 2,140,000 N/A?

HEE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EE2RMEMEERG 2 #EE e
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
(b) Underlying shares (b) #HEE AR 12
Personal Family  Corporate
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other
NCIEE : 5= PN £ RikfEm DEIER Hith
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting, Ready 1,645,000° - - - 1,645,000
Holdings Limited BEE
BERREEER AR
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 1,586,000° - - - 1,586,000
2885
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 587,000° = - - 587,000
2P 4F
Computer Sciences Michael Shove 181,8234&6 - - - 181,823
Corporation
Darren John Collins 20,63074¢ - - - 20,630
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 11,630°%° = - - 11,630
Andrew John Anker 10,16374¢ - - - 10,163

Notes: Bt 5 -

1. These shares were non-voting deferred shares. 1. hEROAEREEERLTR-

2. Theissued share capital of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited comprises 2. BBRG (BB ERATRZERTRNEIE
55,350,000 non-voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary shares. The 2 55,350,0000% £ 1% 52 4 I ST AR R AR AR - 3%
ordinary shares are beneficially owned by the Company. QREBIRAARAERER

3. Options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company, further details of 3. AIREARREERCERE B2 E—F
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below. FEEN T [ERETE] —&-

4. Comprise options to acquire 168,397 shares of common stock of 4. B35 A R 168,397k Computer Sciences
Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC") and 13,426 restricted stock units. Corporation ([CSC | ) @A Z BERX4E [ 13,426

18 52 PR bl A W BE iz

5. Options to acquire common stock of CSC. 5. AIREECSCE AR 2 M AR HE -
6. The directors’ options to acquire shares in CSC are remuneration in their 6. EFRBECCRDZBREDNFEERELSE

capacities as executives of these related corporations. HEARRIZITHRAEZMS -
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March, 2009, none of the directors and
the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests

and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Details of the Company's share option schemes are set out in note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share options

during the year:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RIERRERFARTZIRE

Exercised
during
the year
REFE
TR

Granted

At during

1.4.2008 the year

Name of director ~ RZBBENF  REEFE
Bz A—H AR i

Lapsed
during
the year
REEE
a3

Cancelled

during

the year
REFE

WL

ES2RORBERND 2 ERS

BREXFIEN RZZETZAF=A=+—H0 #
EEERADNAEZTHRABERAR R REEME
BEE (R R FBHFRAEGGEXVER) 2 MR
7 RGO HEFTEE REESF KBS %R
EXVEBE7 KR8 EBE G AR A Al R Bk X P 2 (R AT
wEAR (BREBREHF ISR 2B BIGHE
EESRAEEZERRKAE) HOREZFF R
BB G HI 35215 B B R R P 2 B i flt 2
EERBOAR  ORBREFAAMNE A Q A K
R 2 TSR E °

I8 AR REST &
NS =3 e e e Rl b B
528 ©

ARBZBRERNFAZEHNT :

At DE

31.3.2009 of grant
R-Z2ENE &l
=B + B BRERH

Exercise
price
it
HKS
BT

Exercise period

THEAR

Lai Yam Ting, Ready 490,000 - (490,000) - - 231999 332001 to% 232009 090
BEE 245,000 - - - - 245000 19.10.1999 20102001 toZ 19.10.2009 230
196,000 - - - - 196000 2772001 27.7.2003 toZ 2672011 240
412,000 - - - - 412000 20112002 20.11.2003 t0% 19112012 134
232,000 = = = S 232,000 682004  68200510% 582014 128
248,000 - - - - 248,000 962005 96,2006 toE 86,2015 198
124,000 - - - - 124000 3062006 3062006 toZ 2962016 195
188,000 - - - - 188000 4102007 4102008 to 3102017 232
2,135,000 - (490,000) - - 1645000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BRETTE e

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RTERRERFETZRE

Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
At during during during during At DEI

1.4.2008 the year the year the year the year 31.3.2009 of grant Exercise
Name of director ~ R=ZBBNE  RAEFE REAEE REAEE REEE R-ES R Exercise period price
Bz mA-A AR RiTRE RER WE#E = B AE TEER TEE
HKS
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 120,000 - - - - 120,000 19.10.1999  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 230
s 148,000 - - - - 148,000 2772001 27.7.2003 toZ 26.7.2011 240
330,000 - - - - 330,000 20.11.2002  20.11.2003 toZ 19.11.2012 134
140,000 - = = = 140,000 6.8.2004 6.8.2005 toZ2 5.8.2014 128
210,000 - - - - 210,000 9.6.2005 96.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98
428,000 - - - - 428,000 19.6.2006 19.6.2007 to X 18.6.2016 1.95
60,000 - - - - 60,000 30.6.2006 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 195
150,000 - - - - 150,000 4.10.2007 4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017 232

1,586,000 - - - - 1,586,000
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 245,000 - - - - 245,000 19.10.1999  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 230
BER 218,000 - - - - 218,000 2772001 27.7.2003 toZ 267.2011 240
124,000 - - - - 124,000 30.6.2006 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95

587,000 - - - - 587,000
Employees 170,000 - (110,000) (60,000) - - 2.3.1999 33.2001 toZ£ 2.3.2009 0.90
HitfEg 1,245,000 - - (20,000) - 1,225,000 19.10.1999  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 2.30
55,000 - - - - 55,000 11.2.2000 12.2.2002 toZ 11.2.2010 335
40,000 = = = = 40,000 30.6.2000 1.7.2002 toZ 30.6.2010 340
1,514,000 - = (68,000) = 1,446,000 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 toF 26.7.2011 240
856,000 - (48,000) (120,000 - 688,000 20112002 20.11.2003 toZ 19.11.2012 134
1,064,000 - (100,000) (40,000) - 924,000 6.8.2004 6.8.2005 to X 5.8.2014 1.28
1,986,000 - - (80,000) - 1,906,000 9.6.2005 9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98
2,340,000 - - - - 2,340,000 19.6.2006 19.6.2007 toZ 18.6.2016 1.95
764,000 = - (22,000) = 742,000 30.6.2006 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
844,000 - (22,000) (286,000) = 536,000 30.6.2006 30.6.2007 to £ 29.6.2016 195
2,550,000 - - (270,000) - 2,280,000 4.10.2007 4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017 232

13,428,000 - (280,000 (966,000) - 12,182,000

Total & £ 17,736,000 = (770,000 (966,000) = 16,000,000

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of last grant SEEY BN W TE A2278TT

was HK$2.27.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in

Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at no
time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding companies or
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with
its fellow subsidiaries and ultimate holding company which constituted
connected transactions under The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”):

EEREROAES ZER

B EX TERZ iy ARG 2| & [FERE
& P EES ARF] - HREMERAR RAFE
B 2 ) Sl BT B 22 B 4 1 (AT e e 488 488 4 L AT
ZH BEARRZERZAEBEARRHEME
AN B Z B in sk o m &R -

FEXZ

FA - AN B B E R RS AR R AR A A
TREERERS (REBIMES ETRA L
AR T

Name of company

NRBE

CSA (PRC) Company Limited

CSC Computer Sciences Pte Limited

CSC Computer Sciences (HK) Limited

CSA Automated Pte Limited

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products
2N HIIE B RS R E @
Agency Services

I IR

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products
B HMHITE B RS M E
Non-Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products

JEE AR B R K E a

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products

B SMNAIR B RS ) E

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products
B HNFITR B RS M E
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products

FESNHIR B AR R E

ASL Services CSC Services
and Products and Products
ASLERERER CSCRERER
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T FHT

- 22

3 —

- 3,978

1,060 -

1,536 1,066

510 2,525

2,112 -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) FERS @)

ASL Services CSC Services

Name of company and Products and Products

NG ASLERBRER CCREERER
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T

CSA MSC Sdn Bhd Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 170
BN HITE B RS R E @

Computer Systems Advisers (M) Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 400
Berhad B ANFIIE B RIS R E @

CSC Malaysia Ltd Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 408
B HMHITE B RS M E M

CSC India Pte Ltd Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 16 -

B HMNAIE B RS R E

Computer Sciences Corporation Non-Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 260 -

FEE AR B RS K E f

CSC Canada Limited Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 17
5 #IIE B IR A% K EE an

CSC Danmark Agency Services - 6
IR AR
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Directors’ Report

CON N ECTED TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures in

respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group. The auditor
has reported their factual findings on these procedures to the board of

directors.

All of the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions

have been entered into:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there are no sufficient
comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms

available to or from independent third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2009, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of every
person, other than directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

were as follows:

Number of ordinary

BEEXS @

BB EHRAIE AR EERRAAA DK
B AARE Y HEREXHETETE B 2R
FeoRHMEMEER R RSRE Y RERE -

ARRERHIIIFNTEFSRARER Ll
BRBER5TY:

() HEARBDAER—REBBEPET:

(i) B—REERGTET ML BRHAIFHAE
L Bl AE BT 5 TER R TEZE
EAREBUE=FREZGRET R

(i) RIRE X P2 BB EHETT - IR
BAFARLHARRAME L EBFE-

FERR
R-BBAF=A=+—8 REERAAFLE
TRABHA THAL (AAAEEREETH
KBRS RAA T 2 B 15 AR BAR 15 b H A 2.8
BFHRBE OISV BRI BARAR T HE
P2 EEV TR

Percentage
of issued

share capital

Name of shareholder shares of the Company held mBTREZ
REREZRB RRIFEZEERROEE B
Direct Deemed
interest interest %
HEER AR B
CSA Holdings Ltd ("“CSA") 189,701,896 - 189,701,896 63.78 1
CSC Computer Sciences International
Inc. ("CSI") 13,730,000 189,701,896 203,431,896 68.40 1
csc - 203,431,896 203,431,896 68.40 2



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. CSI beneficially owned 100% of CSA and was accordingly deemed to be
interested in 189,701,896 shares of the Company. In addition, CSI owned directly
13,730,000 shares of the Company.

2. CSC, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, CSI, was deemed to be interested in
203,431,896 shares of the Company.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March, 2009, there was no other
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st March, 2009
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14

of the Listing Rules except as noted below:

(@)  with respect to Code A.1.1, a majority of directors of the Board was
not present in a Board meeting duly held on 27th June, 2008 due to

some directors had to travel for business;

ExaWmE

Directors’ Report

FERR®
i :

1. CSIE 2= A CSA 100% s - MR IERB AR R Z
189,701,896 A& A& 17 2 B4 o LL AN - CSIE BB A AR A A
2.13,730,0000% A% 19 °

2. CSCEREZEBHEAMBRARCSIHERIEREARRZ
203,431,896/% B 17 HE A #E 2 ©

BEXFREN R-BTAF=A=+—8 ¥
mEMEMAL (FAREEREBTRAERN)
RARAT 2 RO R AR RS 5 I
PIEXVEE2 35 B2 X AR AR T BB 2 i
SR

BE HENERLHES

RER ARARKEEFAMBELRAHERE  HE
S AR BEM LS o

BERBE

EAATZ ARNMAREFREEOT  LREBE
IR D AR BIR T A RS 3T 2 S R
ZRE

TEER
AABRBE_TTNF=A=1+—HILEER
—EHET EMRAMS4rE 2 (REERERST
B> - BRAATR ¢

() BPRBAL RN S R ETEBEALH
S A ) 8 R S A
—EENFAACHLEERBTIESE
LT E
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

(b)

with respect to Code A.1.8, if a substantial shareholder or a director
has a conflict of interests in a matter to be considered by the board
which the board has determined to be material, the matter should
not be dealt with by way of circulation but a board meeting. Owing
to urgency for approving the Continuing Connected Transactions
(the “Transactions”) in which the Directors who were considered
interested directors by virtue of their current directorship and/or
office with the Company’s ultimate holding company, Computer
Sciences Corporation (“CSC") and/or its subsidiaries (the “Interested

Directors”), the Transactions were dealt with by way of circulation of

board resolution (the “Board Resolutions”) for business efficacy reason.

The Interested Directors had abstained from approving in the Board
Resolutions. The Transactions were subsequently approved by the
Special Board Committee resolution (comprising the disinterested
Directors) and by a duly held board meeting on 20th November and

26th November, 2008 respectively. Please refer to the Company'’s

announcement and circular dated 3rd November and 24th November,

2008 respectively for the details of the Transactions;

with respect to Code A4.1, all non-executive directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the

Company’s Bye-laws; and

with respect to Code C.3.3, the Board adopted revised Term of
Reference for Audit Committee as a result of the amendments of the

Listing Rules after 1st January, 2009.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors

confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st March, 2009.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive

directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive directors are independent.

m%ééﬁ\

(Z) st=FRIE Mﬁ%“ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%$ﬁ
é%AH#$%J{*E’J$1§¢'Tﬁ§$ﬁ‘”
ﬁmﬂﬁ@ﬁ’ﬁ@$ﬁxﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
NEE MEXAEZTSSHEE -HNIAE
BHEWRER S ([ZRF5])NEHEEHE BE
EHAEEARR A A L IZERR A Bl Computer
Sciences Corporation ([CSC | ) & /s B M B~
RAZBAESEHH R/ LABmER 5B T
THENES ([BANEBRENES]) - ER
%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ”ai%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ§$
ERER([ETRBER])NHIABEE-
ﬁﬂ%@%%%%ﬁﬁ&%$@%%%%ﬁm
ERE -ZRXHERENINR_ZZNF+—
AZ+HERT—AZ+ABEBFRESE
E\“%(EE3Eﬁﬂ$§ﬁ1?9’\]§$iﬂﬁi)ﬁ%%?&
FRBTHESSEIMNE - F2HER
RAR=F ﬂ¢+ R=ZBE+—AZ +@

Bz RERBE UBERZILZHE:
(A) MTRIFA4IEMS AR B2 EINITES
YIRS E AR T - i ARIEA AR AR
ZHTHESRYEERET R
(T) BLFRIZEC33fEME EEER TS NF—
A—RAZBEME EMAETMIET 2 F

AFREEg s BERE-

ARBCERAAN L AR RIPH 81 0P 8 2 SR ST Al o K

ARFAEREEFNBE_ZENF=A=+—"BLLF
ERERATHRETANEHEN 2REFTER
i PIE 52 2 BT E T RIFT R 2 2 2R -

AAREEESBIUIIENTESRIE EMERE
SRR ZFEHRE  EREBINE - AR AR
AEEBEVIINTESHEBEBBE LA L



SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which was established pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, comprising Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen, Mr. Allen Joseph
Pathmarajah, Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard

met five times in the year. During the meetings, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management the connected transactions, accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review of

the audited annual results, unaudited interim and quarterly results, and

discussed various auditing, financial reporting and internal control matters.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HK$170,000.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of significant post balance sheet event of the Company are set out

in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LAl Yam Ting, Ready
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Hong Kong, 10th June, 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEBRGKREERAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 129, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

B EBRAREEERAE
ERRR
(REFZZMAK L2 FREE])

RREEE T ERECE 1208 MBA A RS E
EAERAR ([EAR]) REMBAR (REIEE
B ) zimaBmR EhefRN 2T AF=H
St-HZEAEERBERABEZAMLEFEZ
HEBERR FaRZZPRRFERERERRK
TR BEME R E A A

EENGAMBRRARKE SR

BERREREAAAREEREMAGRMZER
M mERRREE (RAHEDD) BRAZKRERTE
RERAEMATHINBZEGEMBHRE -ER
ERAR EkGEERENEEN ATV
iR A MG WMR A 2 RERES] - AEAR & BT
ROFEBRMEFHEERM G B EAHRERAL
BENEREE 2 HE RIRBER TEHARE
Z &t hEt e

BB 2 E1E

A2 BERRBEATZEREZEHEAMBEHRE
EHER ANTZREERBEBEARE (RADE)
F0F AR (ER—EERE) RS L MEEMLA
& o AT AFAAIRE 2 AR E EAH b A LASE
EAZBAEZEMEE  ATORBEFEGHED
RERMZEBBRTEETER - BLEREKR
RITETERRE AR RATER UEERE
ERAMBHRREL NTFAETMAEAHERRML -



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2009 and of

the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10th June, 2009

8 37 B RS
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZTAF=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

2009

—EENEF

HK$’000

FHET
Turnover EERH 6 1,441,963 1,393,393
Cost of goods sold HE KA (761,890) (799,508)
Cost of services rendered e AR 75 2 B AR (497,076) (419,858)
Other income H At U A 7 8,612 32,589
Selling expenses HEER (87,572) (75,176)
Administrative expenses TEHER (50,868) (42,626)
Finance costs & B AR 8 (234) )
Share of results of associates i AN 880 463
Profit before taxation R 86 A& A 9 53,815 89,275
Taxation HIE 12 (11,164) (13,122)
Profit for the year F R A 42,651 76,153
Dividends &% S 13 62,419 47,370
HK cents HK cents
Bl Bl

Earnings per share R 2 A 14

Basic AR 14.36 25.76
Diluted s 14.31 25.51




ReEERARSRK

Consolidated Balance Sheet

—TENF=A=+—8H
At 31st March, 2009

2009 2008
—EENEF —EENE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREE 15 174,899 223,225
Intangible assets EREE 16 2,503 4,138
Interests in associates SN 17 1,381 705
178,783 228,068
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories & 18 104,467 111,556
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5IA 19 126,314 146,080
Other receivables, deposits and H {th fE Uk FRO8
prepayments Ee RBENHKE 20 24,861 65,202
Amounts due from customers AHIREREFHRIE
for contract work 21 63,184 45,408
Short term bank deposits HHRITERK 22 - 100
Bank balances and cash SRITHEB RIS 22 385,953 398,581
704,779 766,927
CURRENT LIABILITIES B 8
Trade and bills payables BN E S RBERER 23 151,499 182,058
Other payables and accruals E e RIB R ERTE A 24 58,849 75,920
Receipts in advance T8 Ug Us 2= 25 121,371 139,392
Tax liabilities MIEBE 5,776 6,362
337,495 403,732
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 367,284 363,195
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEER
LIABILITIES 546,067 591,263
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Deferred taxation BEFIE 26 14,571 23,142
531,496 568,121
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IRAEEERER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

“EEAF=A=T-A
At 31st March, 2009

2009
—EEAF
HK$’000
FHERT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRFE
Share capital & 7 27 29,743 29,666
Reserves & 501,753 538,455
Equity attributable to equity holders AR B IR A H A
of the Company FEAG AR AN #E 2 531,496 568,121

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 129 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10th June, 2009 and

are signed on its behalf by:

LAl Yam Ting, Ready

BEE

MANAGING DIRECTOR

EFLETE

P RARBAF6CEIVECHESTER _TTNF

NATBEHERFERATES

LAU Ming Chi, Edward

EIES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

HiTEE



SEERERR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ZTAF=A=+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

(o7 4 B @ % 3% (8 B paywi] sbuipjoH swaisAs pajewoiny
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Investment Property Share
Share Share Special revaluation  revaluation Translation options  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits
Bx RAREER BRIRS Eﬁﬁ EEfif BRERE RERN
HKS' HKS'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAL TATL THL THL THT
At 1st April, 2007 \ “EELERA-H 29417 74,466 34,350 14,088 14,272 1,382 4667 351313 523,955
Exchange difference on translation @?\‘%ﬁ?ZEE%E
of overseas operations - - - - - 2,746 - - 2,746
Revaluation increase of BETHRETEREE
leasehold land and buildings - - - - 26,155 - - - 26,155
Deferred taxation arising on RERRETHRET
revaluation of leasehold land MEE ZBERE
and buildings - - - - (4577 - - - (4577)
Increase in fair value of IRNEREATER
availablefor-sale investments £ - - - 7174 - - - - 7174
Net income recognised ERRRARERZFHA
directly in equity - - - 7174 21578 2746 - - 31,498
Profit or the year EREM = - - - - = - 76,153 76153
Total recognised income forthe  ERBZERARA
year - - - 7174 21578 2,746 - 76,153 107,651
Exercise of share options ] 249 3780 = - = = - = 4029
Release on disposal of HEMELERERER
available-for-sales investments - - - (21,262) - - = = (21,262)
Recognition of equity-settled BARKEEURD A
share-based payments Zﬁ - - - = = - 1118 - 118
Special dividend for FY07 paid RE-_ZTLHRER
K50 JH& - - - - - - - (17,761) (17,761)
Final dividend for FY07 paid KE-% Zt?ﬁﬁ(ﬁ?
AERE - - - - - - - (17761) (17,761)
Interim dividend for FY08 paid BE-TT\BHER
RARE - - - - - - - (11,848) (11,848)
At 31st March, 2008 RZFENE=f=1- 29,666 78,246 34,350 - 35,850 4128 5785 380,096 568,121
Exchange difference on translation  BREBNEKZERZE
of overseas operations - - - - - (3223) - - (3223)
Revaluation decrease of leasehold ~ B T3t REEFERFR(E
land and buildings - - - - (18,279) - - - (18,279)
Deferred taxation arising on REFRELHRETN
revaluation of leasehold landand B4 Z EEHIE
buildings - - - - 3016 - - - 3016
Net expense recognised ERRBRARRZFRM
directly in equity - - - - (15,263) (3223) - - (18,486)
Profit for the year EEHF - - - - - = = 42651 4651
Total recognised income (expense) EHRAZFEA
for the year WA/ (i) - - - - (15263) (3223) - 42651 24,165
Exercise of share options it ERE 7 698 - - - - - - 775
Recognition of equity-settled BARKEENRD LA
share-based payments PARE: S - - - - - - 854 - 854
Special dividend for FY08 paid RE=Z Z/\WH
hIR S - - - - = - = (32696) (32,696)
Final dividend for FY08 paid RE=3 E/KWRKE
ABRE - - - = - - = (178%) (17834
Interim dividend for FY09 paid RE_STNHBER
mERE - - - - - - - (11889 (11889
At 315t March, 2009 RZBBAF=A=t-B 29743 78,944 34,350 - 20,587 905 6639 360,328 53149

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the REBZERBGBTIER—NDAEER EBEAE
BERRARRMNEBBRERZXZAAR AR LT i
TEMAEMKEZHERREBETRM 2 MERERR
AREMBETZROZEERE 2HZE8E -

nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-ZTAF=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

2009 2008
—ETAE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit before taxation F %% Al A1) 53,815 89,275
Adjustments for: FEER
Share of results of associates il AN E (880) (463)
Finance costs A& Ak AR 234 2
Share-based payment expense AR AERST N 2R 854 1,118
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBIREE 2,787 115
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & K 8 5 51,464 51,591
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BWEREEZER
plant and equipment 30 1,535
Loss on disposal/write off of intangible assets HE MEETEEZER - 166
Interest income F B U A (3,869) (8,250)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale AHEEREZHEMRS
investments - (20,690)
Dividend income from available-for-sale FEAHEERE ZRBEKRA
investments - (398)
Operating cash flows before movements Rt & BEEABERI 2
in working capital KEXBRERE 104,435 114,001
Decrease (increase) in inventories TEZRL /() 7,089 (2,583)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables A E ZRRIE R D, () 16,979 (43,903)
Decrease in other receivables, H v FEIR K - e R TER SRIE R
deposits and prepayments 34,915 1,496
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from BREBRARRIRD (&)
fellow subsidiaries 5,379 (6,574)
Decrease in amount due from HEZERDQRXR R
immediate holding company - 6
Increase in amounts due from customers EPAHITIR/REEM
for contract work (17,776) (11,826)
Decrease in trade and bills payables e E 5 R0 & 2R (30,559) (3,294)
(Decrease) increase in other payables and HEMERBENEER
accruals CRA) /1 (13,041) 3,909
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance FEU I s CRiA ), /80 (18,021) 41,458
(Decrease) increase in amounts due RERMBABZE (), &
to fellow subsidiaries (7,591) 345
Cash from operations RELEXEK RS 81,809 93,035
Tax refunded BRENIE = 4,497
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BB BFER (16,459) (7,369)
Overseas taxation paid B8N IE (846) (228)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBHREFHE 64,504 89,935
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE_ZTTAF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

2009 2008
—ZETAF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Additions to property, plant and equipment  ANE ¥ - E K& (26,763) (48,267)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME WERZERE
plant and equipment 6,796 171
Interest received 2 WF 2 3,869 8,250
Decrease in interests in associates PO & A B 4w Rk > 204 -
Decrease in short term bank deposits EHRTEIZOR D 100 7,814
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale EEAHEEREME
investments - 41,785
Dividend received from listed securities Bl EmESRKRE - 398
Additions to intangible assets REEBVEE - (466)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REFH RS () BMAFHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (15,794) 9,685
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Dividends paid BT E (62,419) (47,370)
(Repayment to) advance from (M) EEEZERAR GER) 2K
immediate holding company (5,165) 4,332
Interest paid 2RFE (234) )
(Repayment to) advance from an associate () EBENF (B 2R (9) 719
Advance from ultimate holding company RS AAE R A A E R 8,735 805
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of F& B HE 1T (E B 1T IR Z FT 15
share options 775 4,029
Repayment from an associate (LA WNCIb SN 47 741
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBCRESIHER (58,270) (36,746)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBELSEYZ CAD) #Em
CASH EQUIVALENTS (9,560) 62,874
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHZRERASEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 398,581 335,197
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXgHTE
RATE CHANGES (3,068) 510
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEERAESEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash HERRITHEBRRIRE 385,953 398,581
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TZENF=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
holding company is CSA Holdings Ltd, a company incorporated in
Singapore and its ultimate holding company is Computer Sciences
Corporation, a public listed company in the United States of America.
The address of the registered office and principal place of business

of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information on the

annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services. The principal activities
of its associates and subsidiaries are set out in notes 17 and 35,

respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following amendments and new interpretations (“new HKFRSs")

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA").

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(FRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit

Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction

The adoption of these new HKFRSs had no material effect on the
results or financial position of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been

required.

Besides, the Group has early adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
in advance of its effective date, with effect from 1st April, 2008.
Amounts for the current and prior years have been reported on the

new basis.

—fRE1E
ARBRBREFMR LA —RIHREERA
Al ERDEBAHERSGMARAR ([HR
Frl) b e EEEZER AR AR KK Z
CSA Holdings Ltd " R B & &RIER AR AR EEH
A FA_E T Z Computer Sciences Corporation © 7%
NElZ MM ER R EEE KB 2 bR
RERIARER] AHFE -

ARAB—REEZER AR REAAEEAR
o EBMERMBARZ EBEB ZFBIIN
M aE17 %35 ©

AFAPBRRIAETLINR BT RAR A
ZWEEEH -

RG] RSB 2B BN
&AL

WA - AR B ERE N T BB &5
28 ([EBEHMAR)) S 2IETRIR
B ([#EBUIEHRE LR -

BEGHERE9% R ENNESREE
BEUBEREER
F7% (KEET)

BE (BREHRE RisE ez
EAREZEE)
—REBE1R

Bk (ABRYBRE BEGEAF 195
EHREREE) -RERNEE:
-RBFR REEEEXRR

W& ZEHBE

R EHFEBVBRESENRARBES
AAHIREAREZ ZEXM BN AL ES K
T8 Ht BAFREMAATHFE-

BEON - REEAERE W RS E RSB [
IR _TZENFHA—BERR ZAIERA
TS - BRI MBEFE 2RE D REHE



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) = Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs'
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009?

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements*

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation®

Eligible Hedged Items*

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations*

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments?
Embedded Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate®

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners*

Transfer of Assets from Customers’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009, 1st

July, 2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FEAF=A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009
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3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009 3 REZTTENF-—A— B z&MABzFESR
SR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009 4 RZZETENF LA Bz z&RBzFEH
SR

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008 s RETTZN\FLA—AZBRAKBZFEN
AR

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008 6 R-EENFT+A—BR2ERRZFEL
AR

v Effective for transfers on or after 1st July, 2009 7 H_EThF+A BRI ERZEELER

g Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009 ¢ R_BEZNFEANA=ZTHRZERIEZEE
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BE_ZTTAF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on

or after 1st July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control, which will be accounted for as
equity transactions. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new or revised standards, amendments and
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the

financial position of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

the historical cost basis, except for leasehold land and buildings

and certain financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance. The significant accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) made up to 31st March each year. Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its

activities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the

year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of

subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses have

been eliminated on consolidation.

Interests in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint

venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability

is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the

relevant associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTTAF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009
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BE_ZTTAF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
service provided in the normal course of business, less returns and

allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to buyers
(generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and customer
acceptance) and the amount of revenue and the costs incurred for

the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than maintenance services,
is recognised as revenue by reference to the stage of completion,
provided that the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs
to completion can be measured reliably, unless they are incidental

to the sale of a product, in which case they are recognised when the
goods are sold. Stage of completion is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction. Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon

as they are anticipated by the management.

Revenue on outsourcing contracts is recognised based on the
services performed or information processed during the period in

accordance with contract terms and the agreed — upon billing rates.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from computer
equipment let under operating leases, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms

of the relevant leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset’s net carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold land and
buildings, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values at

the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings
is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that

it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to
the consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating

to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is

transferred to accumulated profits.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the cost
or fair value of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated

residual value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis

over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets

with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect

of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products, commencing in the year when the products
are put into commercial production. Development expenditure
capitalised is carried at cost less subsequent accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when

the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is

incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible

assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Outsourcing contract costs

Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally expensed as incurred.
Certain incremental external costs or specific internal costs that
are directly related to contract acquisition or transition activities
which were incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing contract are
capitalised as intangible assets and amortised over the life of the
contract. These costs include the cost of due diligence activities after
competitive selection, costs associated with installation of systems
and processes. Computer equipment acquired in connection with
outsourcing transactions are capitalised in property, plant and

equipment.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less
any identified impairment loss and are tested for impairment annually
by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be

impaired.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than

its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced

to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the
profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another accounting standard, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease under that

accounting standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another accounting standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease under that accounting

standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Installation contracts

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown

as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
balance sheets, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for
work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated balance sheet under amounts due from customers for

contract work .
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating interest
income/expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts/
payments (including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial

asset/liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables,
short term bank deposits and bank balances) are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Loans and receivables are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows

of the financial assets have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables, such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in certain portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective

interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all loans and receivables with the exception of trade receivables and
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, where the carrying amount

is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in

the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent

that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

The Group's financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables and
other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised

in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
income statement items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated balance

sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)

of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the profit or loss, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income, included rentals invoiced in advance from computer
equipment let under operating leases, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms

of the relevant leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease

term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally

treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as

operating leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates

prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,

the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance

sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed

of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial
gains and losses which exceed 10 per cent of the greater of the
present value of the Group's retirement benefit obligations and the
fair value of plan assets are amortised over the expected average

remaining working lives of the participating employees.

FESITEER ()

S

ERFEREEER 2 MBRERE  UZHE
MEEEEUINGEE NS ETZRBTIIRE
ERIThEe &% (BT BRZ 2 KR
E¥IRRSBEHMERZERAR - REHEE
B RIMNEDIEZ ERHBABEE B 2 EX
BHBE-

i@bﬁ%f@é PES < IE X Z5H
KBz BRAP FERR -

B GEMBIREME  AREEINER 2
BENBBUREEEREXRESAEE
25E% (AET) MAMZKARRXIEA
BRFEFHERGE  BRIFHAERHE
BEXRRE AIREER T S$HRARXS A2
ER-FELAZELZRE (WE) BB RR
KRBy (EE ) - ZFELERETS
RENEBEHBRNERRTER -

R RAE R RAS

%ﬁ%ﬂ’l‘i a2 B ([aiEetdl]) kA
BARBHNFEZHFANEERD ?%1

i%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%?*ﬁ LR FI R R S o

MR EBFRARETEIM S - REBFZEAT)
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁrﬁﬂi\ua/ﬁim R S ELEE R
EITREME - MEEERBAAEERINE
MEARERFEEEATEEMER IR
BEZ10% AgR28ES 2 FHRKTIE
FHEAREY o



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the average period until the benefits vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains/losses and
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of
plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to

the plan.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors of the Company and
employees

Share options granted to employees after 7th November, 2002 and
vested on or after 1st April, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed

on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share

options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share options reserve. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to be

held in share options reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to directors of the Company and
employees (Continued)
Share options granted to employees on or before 7th November,
2002, or granted after 7th November, 2002 and vested before 1st
April, 2005
The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded
as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and
the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of

outstanding options.

4. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity

balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profits as disclosed in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company prepare the
annual budget taking into account of the provision of funding.

Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through

the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if

necessary.

There are no changes on the Group's approach to capital risk

management during the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables,

other receivables, short term bank deposits and bank balances and

cash, trade and bills payables, other payables. The risks associated

with these financial instruments and the policies on how to

mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTTAF=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

5. R T A
AEEYTELRTAREREKE SH0E-
H b e FIE - RERITHER RRITAB RIR
& BONENEEMEMEMNZIE - BZE
SR T EMARRAREBIEZSRR 2 BEE
HINMT -EEEERERERZERAR  UE
(R RAERET OB -

(@ EWMITAEDHE

2009
—EEAE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash BER R EWKRIE
and cash equivalents) (BEEERBEEEY) 517,855 568,173
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost G R A 183,613 223,394

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to variable interest rate risk in respect
of the bank balances and deposits of the Group. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, from time to time, if interest rate fluctuated
significantly, appropriate measures would be taken to manage
interest rate exposure. The Group's interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong dollars variable

interest rate on bank balance and bank deposits.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances, at the balance sheet date and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the reporting period in

the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rate.

(b) F=EER
AEBZRITEHREFRSAEBHAR
% B ) = 3L F o 3R S 6% (3 3 A (T
AR R H B AT AR R A
fRK 8 ANEE & RIS B A
BT AT 2 A R LR o R R A R
B REPRRITAERRRRITIERNA

ATBBREDFTIIRFTETE (B
RITAERR) NAEE A PTE R 2 A X E k-

AERITREEREREREZZSH R
(BERFBF =GB 2 TE)NEER
= HAM R A B — R R 5B B EE - 508
FZEBMTINE M ERETEA B ERA
KEREMA NEREERMNEZ S8
Al B L P ERT fik -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)
If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all

other variables were held constant, the Group's:

profit before taxation for the year ended 31st March, 2009

would increase/decrease by approximately HK$ 1,930,000
(FY08: increase/decrease by approximately HK$1,993,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank deposits and

balances.

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised

financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables and bank deposits and balances,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

With respect to amount due from fellow subsidiaries, the
directors of the Company consider the credit risk is limited

because they have strong financial positions.

The credit risk for bank deposits and balances is considered
minimal as the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

5. €T A (@)
(b) FIZRER (&)

(c)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests

with the board of directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and financial liabilities. The Group relies on operating

cash flow as a significant source of liquidity.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contracted

maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of its financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required

to pay.

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

5. @R T A (@)

(d) FEM RS
REMERSRAHESEEEEE &
EeRAEE SN THEEHES
CEEERHEASCERIER By
EREZRBEARERES - AEE
BEREESENRERESRE U
RESREAERSRABRGEAL
TR REH TR RITBE R
IS ERE - TSR AR - A
BRECLEERARDEL Y EER
o

TERHNAEESRABREZFGSOH
RezkzESBEE (RAKEARE
RNz HRFAMZAURRERE

On demand or

within 90 days 91 to
RER 180 days
HHR90H A 91Z180H 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T FE T FHET
2009 —EEAE
Trade and bills payables ERHESREREE 150,970 529 151,499
Other payables H th & 5 BR 18 31,362 752 32,114
182,332 1,281 183,613
Total contractual undiscounted EHRITRIR S MBEHE
cash flow 182,332 1,281 183,613
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. @Rt T A s
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) RBMERBE (#)

On demand or

within 90 days 91 to

REXR 180 days
3 R90A A 91%180H @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiB T FHB T FHBT

2008 —ZENF

Trade and bills payables R E SR RER 180,695 1,363 182,058
Other payables E h fE T BRIB 41336 - 41336

222,031 1,363 223,394

Total contractual undiscounted AHRTRBR @ MERE

cash flow 222,031 1,363 223,394

(e) Fair values of financial instruments (e) EMIAZAFE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are CREERSMEBEZATFEIRESE
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing BB BEeRES M2 EBRMNEER
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices N(RATBEENEMERSER)E
from observable current market transactions. 5E e
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RAREERBNGE T BHRERP IS
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded HAA Rz e REEHESREENK
at amortised costs in the consolidated financial statements EEEEE 2 A TFEEE -
approximate to their corresponding fair values.
(f) Foreign currency risk (f) HER

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars AEBRDMZKEREEZRAEE
and Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the RETRABIT - WEBFRITEREBAA
Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the —EHARASTEETHBERE  BIAE
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to B B Ak 2 2 FINEE [ B K T S A 1 B4 o
peg the Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains in effect. BE_TTNF=A=+—HLFEH
There was no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange - N % 8 KR O B EBS - B I AR E
rates, and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was AEBz SR emIA-

applied during the year ended 31st March, 2009.



TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns and

allowances, and revenue from service contracts, and is analysed as

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTTAF=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

SXRBELDEEN
BEEDEAEEASAELANEER (1]
BB E RITI) RARE BB A KR Z KR
B2 BE BT

follows:
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FERT FHT
Sales of goods HESm 855,334 888,487
Revenue from service contracts RERBEE L Z WA 586,629 504,906
1,441,963 1,393,393

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” in advance
of its effective date, with effect from 1st April, 2008. HKFRS 8 requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”) required an entity to
identify two sets of segments (business and geographical), using

a risks and rewards approach, with the entity's “system of internal
financial reporting to key management personnel” serving only as
the starting point for the identification of such segments. As a result,
following the adoption of HKFRS 8, the identification of the Group's

reportable segments has changed.

In prior year, segment information reported externally was analysed
on the basis of geographical locations of its customers, which over
90% of the Group's revenue is derived from the Hong Kong market.
Also, the Group is principally engaged in providing Information
Technology products (“IT Products”) accompanied with services.

No business segment analysis was presented as the management
considered that the Group has one single business segment.
However, information reported to chief operating decision maker for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment performance

is more specifically focused on the operating divisions for different

products and services with adoption of HKFRS 8 in this year.

AEBEFBUBIRELDFET [LEHE]
R-ZTN\FMA— B LB ZARATT A
R BB I E A B B IAREKE
ZEBEERRECEDHERI L RER
R E EPTE R AR AP Z AP IR E1E
BOPBED W2 EE AR DRIRZE
R (BB G ERIZE 145 [DEwmE ) BIEK
ERNZERZ INHBHB2HBEHIAEE
EREABZHR] MEAREBREHRGEAD
P B (R0 &P Mo #8) EERD
BREDMEE B RNBRBH B ]MELE
A8t 2 1% N B A & 0 A2 BB A M
EE-

RBEFE  BIN2HR2Z D HBER/BRED R
FrREtEaEETON HPAREFRE
0% AR B BB T % LN AEE T2
REFAMRER ([BEABRER]) REW
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

For management purpose, the Group is currently organised into three
operating divisions — IT Products, Information Technology Services (‘IT
Services") and Global Managed Services (“GMS”). These divisions are
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information
to the chief operating decision maker. The business nature of each

segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products
Being the business of information technology in supplying of
information technology and associated products save for the business

under GMS segment.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for
products and solutions, managed services save for the business under

GMS segment.

GMS

The business undertaken by the Group in the provision of global
management services (which include information technology
infrastructure administrative services function, facilities management,
network operation maintenance and on-site support, hardware
maintenance and desktop computing services) to clients in Asia

including Hong Kong, Thailand and Taiwan.

EEBMEDEER &)

ERERRR AEERH=AKLEIrIAE
B — BRI E @ BABERRS ([ & MEH
fR7% 1) RIRIRERARTS ([IRIKBIERAS]) ©
TR AEBEZ2REFENIER T E
EEBRRE 2 BEEE - B EAD 2 B IEE R
BT

BEANRER
B e & SRR E m M AR B 2 B AR
%7 CGRIEERB 2 B2 EBRRI) -

B AR AR 3%

BB R R A B RERIRY  ERRME
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BREERK
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

EEBERDEER ®
SEEE Y HEARMT -

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

Year ended 31st March, 2009

BE-ZZENF=A=+—-HLEE

IT IT

Products Services GMS
BRI BRI BRERE Total
Em BR 7% BR 7% By
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET FHET TER
Turnover from external customers REIINBEE 2 EEF 855,334 505,654 80,975 1,441,963
Intersegment turnover 2 EBfE & R 21,831 40,961 - 62,792
Segment turnover balsid=E - 877,165 546,615 80,975 1,504,755
Reportable segment profit A )& 7 EB A F 22,644 65,682 10,553 98,879
Reportable segment assets ARG D EBEE 202,872 106,965 63,590 373,427
Reportable segment liabilities AmEDEBE 175,603 97,769 11,332 284,704
Depreciation and amortisation EREHE 1,944 10,733 29,554 42,231

Additions to property, BEWE BE R&HE

plant and equipment 87 8,692 9,379 18,158

Year ended 31st March, 2008

BE_ZZN\F=ZA=1+—HLEFE

T T

Products Services GMS
BB AR RIRE R Total
= AR 75 PR 7 HREL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHET FHET FHET
Turnover from external customers ~ REINEFE P 2 & ¥ 5 888,487 426,573 78,333 1,393,393
Intersegment turnover o ERfE & R 17,236 42,604 = 59,840
Segment turnover DEBE 905,723 469,177 78,333 1,453,233
Reportable segment profit Al 3R 4 5 58 & 21,250 71,981 7,636 100,867
Reportable segment assets A ¥R o ERE E 251,877 94,013 96,496 442,386
Reportable segment liabilities ARG B E 239,889 84,138 28,977 353,004
Depreciation and amortisation & K gH 2,634 8,910 31,937 43,481

Additions to property, BEWE BERZHE

plant and equipment 443 6,046 31,855 38,344
Additions to intangible assets BEREEE = = 14 14
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(@) The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note
3. Performance is measured based on segment profit that is
used by the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Taxation is not allocated to reportable segments.

The turnover, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are

allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before taxation, excluding
unallocated investment and other income, share-based
payment expense, share of results of associates, finance

costs, result on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
depreciation and amortisation for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets that are used for all segments,
allowance on bad and doubtful debts and other corporate
expenses (mainly including staff costs and other general

administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates,
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, bank balances and cash
and unallocated corporate assets (mainly including property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets that are used for all

segments, prepayments and deposits).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude tax liabilities, deferred
taxation, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, ultimate holding
company and associate and unallocated corporate liabilities

(mainly including accrued charges of the head office).
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EEBERDEER @)

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment turnover, profit or loss, (Z) AImEDIPUA HFI R EERE
assets and liabilities 1ﬁE’J B
Reportable segment turnover, profit or loss, assets and liabilities ME DA RFINEE  BE
are reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of &EEEEZK%Z%%E&%@QE&%Q
the Group as follows: BEBRAN T

Turnover 2009 2008
EXH —BERE —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Reportable segment turnover Al RE D 2B ¥R 1,504,755 1,453,233
Elimination of intersegment turnover Ml $ 9 ZB ] & 3£ %8 (62,792) (59,840)

Turnover per consolidated income RERABERYIHRNEETE

statement 1,441,963 1,393,393
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage profit BB [ 85 6 422 AK AN D0 B IR M ER o
mark-up.

Profit or loss 2009 2008
e I 5 18 —EBhE It JAX:2
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Reportable segment profit ?ﬁt‘:zﬂ B A 98,879 100,867
Unallocated amounts: RO
Unallocated other income ﬂiﬁﬁﬂ,ﬁ\ﬁwﬁl)\ 5,158 30,574
Unallocated finance costs Ao B REE KA (234) )
Allowance for bad and RIEEIRBE
doubtful debts (2,787) (115)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BERLEZER
plant and equipment (30) (1,535)
Share-based payment expense AR AERSI M ZAX (854) (1,118)
Share of results of associates JEMREEE DRI A 880 463
Unallocated corporate expenses AABERAIHAX (47,197) (39,859)
Profit before taxation per
consolidated income statement 53,815 89,275
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment turnover, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities (Continued)

6.

EEBMRDEER &)

(Z) AEDTUWA HFEE SERE

EHH AR (&)

Assets 2009 2008

BE ZZBHF =\ F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Reportable segment assets A RE D ERE E 373,427 442,386

Unallocated assets: ROBEE:

Interests in associates RN 1,381 705

Unallocated bank balances and cash APBRITEHR IR S 385,953 398,681

Unallocated corporate assets AOBEGCEEE 122,801 153,223
Total assets per consolidated Rére AEBERIIRD

balance sheet BERRE 883,562 994,995

Liabilities 2009
e ZBENF
HK$’000
FHET
Reportable segment liabilities AR ES AR 284,704 353,004
Unallocated liabilities: ROBBRE:
Tax liabilities HIBEEE 5,776 6,362
Deferred taxation RIER A 14,571 23,142
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEEEARE 47,015 44,366
Total liabilities per consolidated Rira EEBBRIIED
balance sheet BERHE 352,066 426,874
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBRIBER 1)

(Continued)

REBEBRYBEEEBHECNEAEE
BERZAIMEM EREEEE EM R
include Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Macau, Taiwan and Thailand. P9 &8 Kk FEE -

The Group's businesses and segment assets are all located in the

respective place of domicile of the relevant group entities which

Turnover from

external customers Non-current assets

Place of domicile

T 7£ ith RENIBEF &R ERBEE

2009 2008 2009 2008

—EThE —ZTT)N\F ZBBLF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FHET FERT
Hong Kong BB 1,271,458 1,283,263 173,700 223,104
Guangzhou EM 18,379 5,133 381 683
Macau RF 62,280 56,751 2,816 2,334
Taiwan = 54,415 7,320 616 853
Thailand R EY 35,431 40,926 1,270 1,094
1,441,963 1,393,393 178,783 228,068

OTHER INCOME

7.

HAib s A

2009 2008

—EENE —EENF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTExT FBT

Interest on bank deposits |ITEHF R 3,869 8,250

Equipment rental income BEHEHSWA 3,454 2,015
Gain on disposal of AHEERE ZHEMS

available-for-sale investments (HBR R S FKAN572,00078 7T )

(net of transaction costs of HK$572,000) - 20,690
Dividend income from AIHEERE ZRIWKA

available-for-sale investments - 398

Exchange gain NG = 48

Miscellaneous Efh 1,289 1,188

8,612 32,589
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8.

The amount represents interest on bank borrowings borrowed and

wholly repaid during the year.

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION o)

BLE A

BERFBEEARAFERNZRERE ZRITE

BEZAE -

BR B4 A a8 A

2009
—BBAF

HK$'000
TEx

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after  BR A A& F THASHIBR N2 & 18 ¢

2008
—ZENEFE
HKS$'000
FHET

charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) FEE (BFEE10) 6,366 7,474
Other staff costs Hfth 8 TRRA
Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 318,185 286,817
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RRAE T ET 2] 4 A BRO2 Uk
net of forfeited contributions of HROTHET(ZZETN
approximately HK$nil (FY08: HK$105,000) BB ¢ 105,000/ 7T ) 8,965 5,825
Share-based payment expense AR D REME A 2 776 987
Total staff costs BB TRA 334,292 301,103
Depreciation and amortisation: e B
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KRR 49,829 49,873
Intangible assets (included in cost of EREE (BRERRER
services rendered) RIEZHA) 1,635 1,718
51,464 51,591
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBERE B 2,787 115
Auditor’s remuneration: ZERNE S
Current year KEZ 1,563 1,131
Underprovision in respect of prior year BAFEREBTR 684 58
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 17 & X AN R A X 761,890 799,508
Exchange loss ME 5 B8 182 =
Loss on disposal of property, LEME WMERZEER
plant and equipment 30 1,535
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEREFEE S - 166
Operating lease rentals in respect of: LaHERE:
Premises S 8,277 8,786
Computer equipment B 3,075 1,793
Research and development costs 7% & G 3 AR A 794 =
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. ESM<E

2009 2008

—EENE —ETN\F

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET TS T

Fees ik 868 1,030
Other emoluments: HEie -

Salaries and other benefits HekEMEFR 4,259 4,032

Performance related incentive bonus RIRB 2 RENIEAT 877 2,003

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRE R FTEI R 284 278

Share-based payment expense ARG AER N 2 X 78 131

6,366 7,474

thirteen) directors were as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (FY08:

AAREMNHEN L (ZEENTHE
B:t=f)EFZHMSMT

2009
S LIE-

Share-

Performance  Retirement based

Salaries related benefit payment

and other incentive scheme expense

benefits  payments contributions  HABR#%H
Fees ek XREFHZ BHRER HE@ % Total
Name of director e Hit @A RBREA  FHEMRK ZHx k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT

(Note)
(H=E)

Lai Yam Ting, Ready BEL - 2,526 691 260 40 3,517
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 288 % - 1,373 186 12 38 1,609
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah Allen Joseph Pathmarajah 118 - - - - 118
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter BHIE 74 360 = 12 = 446
Moo Kwee Chong, John Moo Kwee Chong, John 74 - - - - 74
Michael Shove Michael Shove 50 - - - - 50
Darren John Collins Darren John Collins 50 - - - - 50
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth  Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 50 - - - - 50
Andrew John Anker Andrew John Anker 50 - - - - 50
Cheung Man, Stephen £33 152 - - - - 152
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter BE18M 122 = = = = 122
Li King Hang, Richard 4] 128 = - - - 128
868 4,259 877 284 78 6,366

(&7 4 B @ % 3% (8 B paywi] sbuipjoH swaisAs pajewoiny
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

10. EEM € (o)

2008
ZEENF

Share-

Performance Retirement based

Salaries related benefit payment

and other incentive scheme expense

benefits payments  contributions PARRID

Fees Hek xREEAH<z REEN  ERXA

Name of director e H 48 RETEL  FrEIER ZRx

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FTET FTET FTET

(Note)
(FisE)

Lai Yam Ting, Ready BELE - 2396 1,520 254 73 4,243
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 258 % - 1,276 483 12 58 1829
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah Allen Joseph Pathmarajah 124 - - - - 124
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter PHE 128 360 = 12 = 500
Moo Kwee Chong, John Moo Kwee Chong, John 80 - - - - 80
George Finlay Bell George Finlay Bell 33 - - - - 33
Michael Shove Michael Shove 17 - - - - 17
Darren John Collins Darren John Collins 50 - - - - 50
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth  Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 50 - - - - 50
Andrew John Anker Andrew John Anker 50 - - - - 50
Cheung Man, Stephen 3¢ 170 - - - - 170
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 82 18H 140 = = = = 140
Li King Hang, Richard 3y 188 - - - = 188
1,030 4,032 2,003 278 131 7474

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined as a
percentage of profit for the year of the Group.

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group and no

directors have waived any remuneration.

st : REAMRBIEAEANEEFRZHEN2H

—BALHE-

RER - REBWESEEFINAREEM S

Mzie WRAEEREEMMHL -
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES N AEZESHZ2EER
hEReaHzEBERE—R (ZZEZ\WHKRF
B MAB)ES FEZWEFBER LXMW
HIORBE-EHNEZR(ZEENMHREE: =
R)FEE R FEEZMESFBLT

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included
one (FY08: two) director(s), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. The remuneration of the remaining four (FY08:

three) highest paid individuals for the year are as follows:

2009

—ETNE
HK$'000 HKS'000
FERT FHET
Salaries and other benefits Fe kEMER 6,717 4,298
Performance related incentive bonus KILB B 2 BB IEA 4,197 4,477
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R ONE FIET B A3 312 186
Share-based payment expense ARmAERS N 2R 52 128
11,278 9,089

Their remuneration was within the following bands:

BEZBENFTHIgEE:

Number of employees

BEAR

2009 2008
—sBhE —EENE

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

1,500,001 7 7T — 2,000,000/ &
2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7 7T — 3,000,0007 7T
3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ T
4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T
4,500,001/% 7T — 5,000,000/% 7T
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12. TAXATION 12. BiIE
2009 2008
—EENE —ZEENFE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT T T
The charge comprises: RIS B E
Current taxation: BNEAR 1A
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH 15,730 12,640
Overseas taxation B INFLIB 9206 1,407
Under(over)provision in prior years: BAEFTHEEBEEIR (BREEE)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEREH 83 (88)
Overseas taxation NI - =
16,719 13,959
Deferred taxation (Note 26) IEEFRLTE (Ff5E26)
Current year REE (4,232) (837)
Effect of change in tax rate MERSE 2B (1,323) =
(5,555) (837)
Taxation attributable to the Company and ARARREMB AR EEFE
its subsidiaries 11,164 13,122

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (FY08: 17.5%) on the

estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong for the year.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective

jurisdictions.

FEMNEHEEFRRRER 2 fH5HERD

HARFHEZR165% (—EF

fEH B -

NFBRFEE :17.5%)

BINERBANZPAEBI RS B OAPIEE 2

TR TR AR B -



12 TAXATlON (Continued)

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

12. B 18 (2
Z!Sif%ﬂlﬁiﬁj"f REBEERZBH AR
FEERUOE -

taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

2009 2008
ZEEAF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit before taxation B B A & A 53,815 89,275
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% REBMEH T E165%
(FY08: 17.5%) AEZRE(ZEENMK
FE17.5%) 8,879 15,623
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RS 5 E A0 2
tax purpose STH2 BB E 766 860
Tax effect of income not taxable BT E R Z z
for tax purpose WAZRGERE (628) (1,513) g
Tax effect of share of profit of associates EOBMERNTBMZBEETE (145) 81) g
Under(over)provision in prior years BAFERETE (BEEE) 83 (88) }é
Effect of different tax rate applied to gain RE M RERE R 3L L& A i
on disposal of available-for-sale HERE ZWEHA $
investments in other jurisdiction TRBEZ ZE& - (1,552) é
Effect of different tax rates of BBINEEMTEHH g
overseas operations TRRE 2 F 8 53 599 ]%
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERZBBBEE MG E 2,683 77 %
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss not BRAERIARERZ %
previously recognised MEE BB e - 37)
Effect of change in tax rate MERE 2B (1,323) = =
Others Hith 796 (766) a
Taxation charge for the year FARIAX H 11,164 13,122 95

¥ = 600Z 310day jenuuy
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13. DIVIDENDS

13. K&

2009 2008
ZEBAEF —ZETN\EF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FHT
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERRZDIRZIRE -
during the year:
Interim dividend in respect of FY09 of —ETNFBFEZ
4.0 HK cents (FY08: 4.0 HK cents) HERAR B F AR4.07 1L
per share —EEN\WHEE:
4.07840) 11,889 11,848
Final dividend in respect of FY08 of T \MBFEZ
6.0 HK cents (FY08: 6.0 HK cents RERE B F fRe.07E Il
in respect of FY07) per share (ZETN\PRFE:
—EELUHEE
5 8%6.0781l) 17,834 17,761
Special dividend in respect of FY08 of T \HBFEZ
11.0 HK cents (FY08: 6.0 HK cents AR B &R 1.0l
in respect of FY07) per share (ZEZNMBREE :
—ETEMBEE
FB&e6.08 L) 32,696 17,761
62,419 47,370
Dividends proposed: BRI S
Final dividend in respect of FY08 of T N\VBFEKRHA
6.0 HK cents per share % B & A% 6.0 11l - 17,800
Special dividend in respect of FY09 of —ETNHMBEEZ
92.0 HK cents (FY08: 11.0 HK cents) Rl AR B8 1R 92.078 11l
per share —ZEEN\MHBEFE:
11.0%l) 273,633 32,632
273,633 50,432

No final dividend is proposed by the directors (FY08: HK$17,800,000),
The special dividend for the year of 92.0 HK cents per share, totalling
HK$273,633,000 (FY08: HK$32,632,000) have been proposed by the
directors subsequent to 31st March, 2009 and is subject to approval
by the Company’s shareholders in the forthcoming special general

meeting.

EETESZRERRE (ZETNTREF
[€:17,80000087C) - EEER=_TZNF=
A=+—HEREFEAFEFIRERER20
AL - BN & ££273,633,00078 70 (=2 T \BF X
FE $32,632,00087T) * WAFARBRRR
FEERR R ARG LB - FAIEE -



14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based

on the following data:

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

14. R EF
A AFRAREE ARG SR R E A
TR T B -

2009 2008
—ETAF —EE)N\F

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings

per share and diluted earnings per share

R E S RERK
EERANZ BN

42,651 76,153

Number of shares

gt 4|
2009

—2ENE
‘000
TR

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

RAFTEGRERRT 2

for the purpose of basic earnings per share AR N T 297,075 295,581
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares TRREEESYE

— Share options — BN 964 2,963
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FALAGTESIR#E EE & T 2

for the purpose of diluted earnings AR N T

per share 298,039 298,544
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME-BENRRKRE
Leasehold Furniture Data  Computer
land and and centre  and office
buildings fixtures Motor equipment equipment
HE L B vehicles & ERR Total
kiEF RESE AE BE BAERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHBT FHT FHT FHT T
THE GROUP rE
COST OR VALUATION BAREE
At 1st April, 2007 R-_ZTZ+tFWA—A 94,800 34,007 2,244 7,178 280,565 418,794
Exchange realignment RIS = 644 24 = (244) 424
Additions NE = 1,738 1,646 6,339 38,544 48,267
Disposals HE - (138) (95) - (16,915) (17,148)
Revaluation adjustment EHAR 23,800 - - - - 23,800
At 31st March, 2008 R=ZZZENF
=A=+—8 118,600 36,251 3,819 13,517 301,950 474,137
Comprising: BiE:
At cost A = 36,251 3,819 13,517 301,950 355,537
At valuation - 2008 HE-ZZTTNEFE 118,600 = = = = 118,600
118,600 36,251 3,819 13,517 301,950 474,137
Exchange realignment BE 5 A 5 - 726 (28) - (1,836) (1,138)
Additions NE - 3,561 64 2,141 20,997 26,763
Disposals HE = (497) (30) = (10,430) (10,957)
Transfer R = 4,055 = 364 4419) =
Revaluation adjustment EHAE (21,300) = = = = (21,300)
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZZBENE
=A=+—-H 97,300 44,096 3,825 16,022 306,262 467,505
Comprising: B
At cost %N - 44,096 3,825 16,022 306,262 370,205
At valuation — 2009 HE-—_ZThF 97,300 = = = = 97,300

97,300 44,096 3,825 16,022 306,262 467,505




15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
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HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

15. W% -BERKE ®

Leasehold Furniture Data  Computer
land and and centre  and office
buildings fixtures Motor equipment equipment
HELH &M vehicles EEF L EER Total
RETF REE RE B3] @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHT FHT FHT FTHT
DEPRECIATION AND HERBHE
AMORTISATION
At 1st April, 2007 RZTZT+FWMA—H = 31,457 2,007 4,055 181,359 218,878
Exchange realignment X B = 515 24 = (581) (42)
Provided for the year FRERE 2,355 1,267 294 857 45,100 49,873
Eliminated on disposals A E R 8 - (116) (95) - (15,231) (15,442)
Eliminated on revaluation T (i B T 8 (2,355) = = = = (2,355)
At 31st March, 2008 RZZEN\F
=A=+—"H = 33,123 2,230 4912 210,647 250,912
Exchange realignment i X B = 614 28) = (1,568) (982)
Provided for the year FRERE 3,022 2,146 398 1,167 43,096 49,829
Eliminated on disposals A E K 8 = (492) (30) = (3,609) (4,131)
Transfer LR = 3,660 = 364 (4,024) -
Eliminated on revaluation T2 (i B 3 8 (3,022) = = = = (3,022)
At 31st March, 2009 R-EBNF
=A=+-H - 39,051 2,570 6,443 244,542 292,606
CARRYING AMOUNTS RESHE
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZBERF
=A=+-H 97,300 5,045 1,255 9,579 61,720 174,899
At 31st March, 2008 RZZT)N\F
=ZA=+-—"8 118,600 3,128 1,589 8,605 91,303 223,225
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on

a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease or 50 years,

whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Data centre equipment 10%

Computer and office equipment  20% - 33/5%

The leasehold land and buildings were revalued by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional valuer, at 31st March,
2009 at market value basis which is determined by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties. The
revaluation gave rise to a net revaluation decrease of HK$18,279,000
(FY08: increase of HK$26,155,000) which has been charged to the

property revaluation reserve.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortisation, of
approximately HK$69,182,000 (FY08: HK$71,638,000).

15. % BERSKE

By

=1
=W

(
b BERREZBB DRBERER
NEIFERIFE

FAE i RIEF R T 2 HLNFH
FETF (AR
K& RAE)

BRRESE 10% — 20%

qE 20%

BB R 10%

B RPN ERE 20% - 33:%

HETHREFHBEIEEGHEMBERITE
BARR-_ZETAF=A=+—H2EmH
FREYETNR S 2 ERE IR EEEE
FTEEfh o iR HEE £ E (R E F 7818,279,000
BT (ZZET N\BEFE : 3% (H26,1550007
TT)  WEEAMESEEE-

WA E T REFRFER  ESEELRAN
M RET 9T & M 854969,182,0008 L (= F
TN\ REE  71,638,0008 7T ) st AL E R A
BA TS K o



16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. BLEE
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HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

Deferred  Outsourcing Patents
development contract and
costs costs licences Club
ELERRE HHER HAEK memberships Total
%N %N B EEs Foby
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
THE GROUP rEE
COST %N
At 1st April, 2007 RZZEZLFMA—H 17,993 3,589 7,800 900 30,282
Exchange realignment BE 5 A - 375 - - 375
Additions NE 452 14 - - 466
Disposals/write off ik - (166) - - (166)
At 31st March, 2008 RZZEENF
=A=+—H 18,445 3,812 7,800 900 30,957
Additions NE - - - - -
Disposals/write off & (2,030) (172) - - (2,202)
At 31st March, 2009 R=ZBNF
=A=+—H 16,415 3,640 7,800 900 28,755
AMORTISATION AND BHERAAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2007 RZZETLFMA—AH 15,263 1,936 7,800 = 24,999
Exchange realignment fE 5 B - 102 - - 102
Provided for the year FREE 1313 405 = = 1,718
At 31st March, 2008 RZZZN\EF
—A=+—H 16,576 2,443 7,800 = 26,819
Provided for the year FENEE 1,212 423 = = 1,635
Eliminated on disposals/write off 7 & B 5 35 /i 84 (2,030) (172) - = (2,202)
At 31st March, 2009 R=ZBNF
=A=+-—H 15,758 2,694 7,800 - 26,252
CARRYING AMOUNTS RESE
At 31st March, 2009 R=ZENE
=B=t+-H 657 946 - 900 2,503
At 31st March, 2008 RZZT)N\E
=A=+—H 1,869 1,369 = 900 4,138
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16 |NTANG|BLE ASSETS (Continued)

The club memberships acquired from third parties with indefinite

useful life are stated at cost less any identified impairment.

Other than club memberships, the above intangible assets have

finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

following periods:

Deferred development costs 3 years
Outsourcing contract costs Over contract life
Patents and licences 2 years

All of the Group's patents and licences were acquired from third

parties.

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

16.

17.

BEEE &)
BEE=HEER G EN Y e B
AT 2 35 2139 25 6 48 51 B o

Bemasih LB EESARRERF
H - W ABEAOER T 5 HAR A 5

R FE R A A 3
SMHI & HIRK AR BAE S B FH
B RIER 2F

MEASEZEFEREROBAE =%

)

gt

T

N AEm

4l

2009 2008
—EBAF —EENF

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET TAT

Share of net assets EHEESFE

1,381 705

Particulars of the Group's unlisted associates at 31st March, 2009 and

31st March, 2008 are as follows:

Name of associate

BEATER

ASL Automated Services
(Thailand) Limited

IN Systems (Macao) Limited

Country/place
of incorporation
=L RL L 2
R, ith B

Thailand
2 B

Macau

R

RZZEZNF=A=+—HAR-ZENE=
A=+—R AREEZIF DB ED A
w

Percentage

of nominal value
of issued ordinary
share capital

held indirectly

by the Company

AAREERES

ERTEBRRSE Principal activities
BRERL FEHEK

49% Provision of engineering
and software services

RE TR RRMRE

33.3% Provision of engineering

and software services

Bt TR MBI AR
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. BE QR @)
The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of the RAEEBE AR ZRAUEERBESS

Group's associates is set out below:

m

2009
ZEEhEF
HK$'000
THET
Total assets BEE 9,088 3,563
Total liabilities wAE 4,945 2,062
Net assets FEE 4,143 1,501
Group's share of net assets of associates REEERLBENTFEEE 1,381 705
Total revenue FEt g 11,380 11,407
Total profit for the year RNEF B m T 2,640 1,402
Group's share of results of associates for NEE B R EEE A A
the year REFEHE 880 463
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of REE D R TR IR B & A R 2 BiE o B L
an associate. The amounts of unrecognised share of this associate, BENREBEIAFERBHTERSTE (B
extracted from the relevant management accounts of an associate, BEBME QAR ZHEBTERE)NAT

both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT

Unrecognised share of (gain) loss of an

associate for the year

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of

an associate

REERERELEE QA
(W) B8 (13) 80
B RTEREMNEE AR EE
620 633

(o7 4 B @ % 4 3% (8 B paywi] sbuipjoH swaisAs pajewoiny
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2009 2008

—EENE —EENEFE

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHERT FHT

Goods held for resale BEEEZEY 27,618 39,509
Goods pending customers’ acceptance BREEFPEMZEY 76,849 59,454
Contracts in progress RTEKE L - 12,593
104,467 111,556

Goods held for resale and goods pending customers’ acceptance
mainly represent computer equipment and software products.
Contracts in progress as at 31st March, 2008 mainly comprised costs
of labour directly engaged in project development and installation

contracts.

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for
30 days. An aged analysis of the trade receivables at the balance sheet
date, based on aging from payment due date and net of allowance of
HK$4,535,000 (FY08: HKS$4,183,000), is as follows:

19.

RIFBECEMREREFPEMIENEE
REMRBREHER #E_ZTN\F=A
ST —RAZRERANEIEREER Y NG
SERMLEANZBTRA-

FEWE Z K18

REBZAEEFPER FHZEH0BEERS-
BURE S RBEREE B 2 RER D TIRIE R
B8 B R 0B B 54,535,000 7T (=2 Z )\ 8
B4 : 4,183,000/ 7 ) 10 ¢

2009 2008

ZEBAF —TENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Not yet due i K EI Bf 77,559 88,710
< 30 days 30K AR 24,893 25,637
31 - 60 days 31E60K 9,786 10,299
61 - 90 days 612 90K 4,428 5,822
> 90 days HEBIOK 9,648 15612
126,314 146,080




19 TRADE RECE'VABLES (Continued)

The aged analysis of trade receivables that are past due and not

impaired are as follows:

fRE SR MR
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19. BN E 5 FKIE (&)
60 I T ROR M FE MR 5 BB B 5 -

2009 2008

—EBEEBAE ZETNF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

Past due less than 90 days #HER T 290 H 39,107 41,758
Past due over 90 days A B B0 H 9,648 15,612
48,755 57,370

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade receivables based

on historical default rates and the creditworthiness of the trade
receivables. For the trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired at the balance sheet date, the subsequent settlement is over
70% (FY08: over 90%). For the remaining unsettled trade receivables
which are past due but not yet impaired at the balance sheet date,
the historical default rate is low and the relevant debtors have

good repayment history. Accordingly, no further impairment loss is
considered necessary. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful
debts

AEERBEWESHREZRLEREERE
B NTERENESRIBZ EEER HEE
HEBSHERTREZEKESHE  HiEE
EBE70% (ZFT\BHEE : 890%) °
HEZABBIERTREZ#®RTRERNE
WE SHIE B HRERE BEEREZ
BERERIF A NEBRAETNEE—
FEHRREER  AEEWER L SERTE
EfE R o

RERBE 22D

2009 2008

ZBENF —ZZETNF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

THET T

Balance at the beginning of the year FH R 4,183 4,068
Increase in allowance recognised in RiEmBRER 2 BEIE N

profit or loss 2,787 115

Bad and doubtful debts written off during F M2 RIERR
the year (2,435) -
Balance at the end of the year FRAER 4,535 4,183

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a

wide range of customers that have a good payment record.

SEEE B ERE 2 BRI E 53R - F Rk
HEMEREZY BHE RFERCENEP -
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20. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. HhEWFIE - IRE RTBARK
PREPAYMENTS 15
2009 2008
—EEAE —TTINF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Other receivables H b fE W RIR 101 12,599
Deposits Re 6,351 2,974
Prepayments SEENE ] 12,922 38,716
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries BEANIEAGIVE: 5,487 10,866
Amount due from an associate (R /NETDNE Y = 47
24,861 65,202
Other debtors and the amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and an H i B UK BR & [F] R BT /B 2 7] K B B 2 B R 3R
associate are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. IR B NBIREREE-
The credit terms for the amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are REHBRRRKZEEREA K A30HE0
usually 30 to 90 days. As at the balance sheet date, amounts due from H-R&EE B RRKBLQ AR KD E -

fellow subsidiaries were not yet due.

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR 2. BEFEHNIRXK
CONTRACT WORK

2009
—sEAE EN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET

Contracts in progress at REERZRTKRE L :

the balance sheet date:

Contract costs incurred plus recognised FTEE & 2 & RIB R IS 73R

profits less recognised losses w AR A R R S 1R 63,184 45,408
Less: Progress billings W EE A - -
Due from customers included in FIARBEEZEF R

current assets 63,184 45,408
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22. SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 22. BWEAR T RITERR
BALANCES AND CASH HE

RZBZENF=A=+—H SHRITERE
BASEMBERIBFERIR=ZMEAZTEF
o WEIEL100,0008 LE BERBAERE
TRERITRVE 2 RITIFR - M IR1TEE R
BASEMBERIGPEA=EAIUTZ

with an original maturity of three months or less. Fake

As at 31st March, 2008, short term bank deposits comprise deposits
held by the Group with an original maturity not less than three
months and include bank deposits of approximately HK$ 100,000 that
have been pledged to secure certain short term banking facilities of

the Group. Other bank balances comprise deposits held by the Group

SRITHBEREHRTERIEM SR XS - F
HEF R D B A03%%1.89% (—EZ \ BT K
FEF:09%/%2.72%) °

Bank balances and short term bank deposits carry interest at market
rates with average interest rate of 0.3% and 1.89% (FY08: 0.9% and

2.72%) per annum, respectively.

23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23. BRNEZGREREE
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance ERE SHEREENEE BIREMA KB H
sheet date, based on payment due date, is as follows: AZBRESTIAT

2009 2008
ZE2EBAF —ET)N\F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Not yet due i K 2 Bf 96,245 93,391
< 30 days 30K AR 46,312 66,105
31 - 60 days 31E260K 5,751 5,464
61 - 90 days 61290K 1,283 5,862
> 90 days H#BIOKR 1,908 11,236
151,499 182,058

(o7 4 B @ % 4 3% (8 B paywi] sbuipjoH swaisAs pajewoiny
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24

. Bl A K

BN ETEA

2009 2008

ZEBAEF —ZTENF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FExT FHT

Other payables H b B I 5,370 10,562
Accruals et E A 26,735 34,584
Amount due to ultimate holding company 9( X B AR A R R IE 16,874 8,139
Amount due to immediate holding company R BB ER A 7518 = 5,165
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries UNGELI=NGIE @ 9,160 16,751
Amount due to an associate REEE RN B RIA 710 719
58,849 75,920

The amounts due to ultimate holding company, immediate holding

company, fellow subsidiaries and an associate are unsecured, interest

free and are repayable on demand.

As at the balance sheet date, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries were

not yet due.

25. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to:

(i) delivery of goods which is recognised in profit or loss upon the

delivery of goods; and

(i) delivery of service which is recognised in profit or loss over the

service period stipulated in the respective customer contract.

25.

‘15:

o

T
A

|
A

i
Al

REER  RERKEQE

TR U IR

REHEERAR  BEEERAR AREMEA
AN ERR 2 FAREER 2B RARE

BECEIE

TR R IR BITA T At 15 50 B A B 2 B 3

() XRNEm(ENERINEHER
R R

8 AR Bl

(i) RERB (EREBEREF A QFTANR

ﬁ%gﬁﬁfﬁET EEEEWU °



26. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised

by the Group and movements thereon during the current and

preceding year:

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. &

Accelerated
tax

depreciation

IEBE
wE
HK$'000
FATT

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

FERL B
IRIDARECERZ EZEERAAE (B
E)RAMFERFRNEE:

Revaluation

of
properties Tax loss Total
MEEM B\ st
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET

At 1st April, 2007 RZTZTLFMA—H 16,375 3,027 = 19,402
Credit to consolidated Rére Bam RN H

income statement (837) - - (837)
Charge to equity B R kR - 4577 - 4577
At 31st March, 2008 R=EZZT\F=H=+—H 15,538 7,604 - 23,142
Credit to consolidated Rére Bm RN H

income statement (3,011) (914) (307) (4,232)
Credit to equity B AR A R 30 BR = (3,016) = (3,016)
Effect of change in tax rate HEF (888) (435) - (1,323)
At 31st March, 2009 R-BEAF=A=+—H 11,639 3,239 (307) 14,571

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of
HKS$18,121,000 (FY08: HK$440,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of

HKS$ 1,863,000 (FY08: HKSnil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$16,258,000 (FY08:

HK$440,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

RZETZANF=ZA=+—RH AEBEXRH
FA#i1818,121,0008 T (Z T \NMIBFE :
440,000 7T ) AT $H R 2K % Bl - B 5t H
1,863,000 7T (ZET \MEFHE : &) EiEE
R IE T I8 & E o B 7 B LA TB 5T 5K 2R FIl 2R
TR AT EEBLER T 216,258,000 7T (=TT )\
£F £ 440,000 7T ) R IE LR IAE E
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

27. IR

Number of shares Amount
KRBEAB &8
2009 2008 2009
ZEEAFE ZTZN\F ZBEAF
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000
F B F A% F#ExT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HREBEI0BIT.Z
gl
Authorised: VETE B
At 1st April and 31st March REA—HK
=A=+—H 600,000 600,000 60,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1st April RHA—H 296,657 294,170 29,666 29417
Exercise of share options 1T RS A 770 2,487 77 249
At 31st March R=A=+—8 297,427 296,657 29,743 29,666

During the year, the Company issued 770,000 ordinary shares of

HKS$0.10 each at the subscription prices ranging from HK$0.90 to
HK$1.95 per share (FY08: 2,487,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at
the subscription prices ranging from HK$0.90 to HK$2.40 per share)

under the share options scheme of the Company.

The new shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue

in all respects.

RER - RIBAR B 2 BEHERTE - 770,000
LEREREE 0TI AREESRN T

0.907 7T £1.9578 JL1T1#

—EEN\HHFE

#£2,487,000T8 I 38 IR = AR 1 1H0.1075 JT B LARR
BB E RN F-0.905 TTE 24058 7T ) ©

ZEMBRARERNESER LHBRSE

7 o



28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
16th October, 1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to any employee and/or director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual under the Scheme shall not
exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares for the time being
issued and issuable under the Scheme. Options granted must be
taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon payment of HKS1
as consideration per grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of
80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of

grant of the options, and the nominal value of the shares.

Pursuant to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange which became
effective from 1st September, 2001, any options granted after 1st
September, 2001 must comply with the provisions of the revised
Chapter 17. In order for the Company to be able to grant options to
its director and/or other eligible participants after 1st September,
2001, the Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
in the general meeting held on 8th August, 2002. As a result, the
Company can no longer grant any further share option under the
Scheme. However, all share options granted prior to 1st September,

2001 will remain in full force and effect.

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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28. BBIREST &

REARBHEEFNERRZEMEERR
SHEERERBROR  ARAR NN
FHATRNBHEMN—REREE ([ZE
) -REZEE T EMALZBERE
ARBZENEE  RENSEERZ SR
BITRB BRI BEZ225% - EXHBRENA
R B RREET 28 R AA AT AR B
AXMBTERRE -TEEIRARAE
EEEEBTEORROREBRERH A
A AER S B EBRPT 2 FHKRTEZ280%%
BOEEMmER ZERRE -

REMZAEF ETRUBETEEZERT (R
—EEFNA-BER) R-FT—Fh

A—RARELZERBRELATSEER
FETEEZBRX - BRARARBATR_FE—

FNA-—BEMAEER SEMEERS
HEERDBBRE  ARRE &L LR
BR-ZZ-_F N \ANBRTZRRERREG L
BB 2R R — IR B AR R AT B ([ ET
21 Bt ARB NS BREBEZEE—F
RO EMERE AT R-FT—FhA—
BRIERB ZMEBERE/RDARE+RR
pSE Gl

1
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28 SHARE OPTlON SCHEMES (Continued)

Under the New Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time. Options granted must be taken up within
28 days of the date of offer, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration
per grant. There is no general requirement that an option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised but the
directors of the Company is empowered to impose at its discretion
any such minimum period at the time of grant of any particular
option. The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the directors of the Company at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options; and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The New Scheme will

expire on 7th August, 2012.

At 31st March, 2009, the aggregate number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted under the Scheme and the New
Scheme was 16,000,000 (FY08: 17,736,000), representing 5.4% (FY08:
6.0%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

28.

BIRESTE (@)
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%'$Aﬂ§$ﬂﬁéﬁ%Eé(E
FEARRREMNBARZES) R L EARE
REBEARR ARG o RIEF TSI AR 2 AR
AR RO BE - TEEBARR RN EAR
M2 BEBITRMG 210% ° RERFER FEM
AT 2 AR AT RS 2 IR0 48 2K - TS EBIBA
NAIREMEREZBBEITRG Z1% - B H
RERRHE B R IR B BB ST 28K B 4 - AN
BEREBESMABTERSRE RKILE
— MR E BRI A A T 0 BB AR A AT 4%
BRABRE TASELR A ARES
FERRE RN I (4 TE B AR B - BYIS A N 1E
fa] B AR BARR » AT AT BB AR 2 HARR #§ A AR A )
EETRNEEE  HEMBRE-ZTER
B BB 0FBERITE -1TEEBEAR
AEEETE EHTELRUAT=ZEF28E
& (R R IRER L B Rz
B: bRORBEREXLEBBHAIIAEERS A
TERE R P 2 FHW T B RO EE © 375t
SER =T —=—FNAtBER-

RZTZTAE=ZA=1+—8 REZFTER
a2 B8 AR #E £ 5 16,000,0008% (=
TE N\ BEE :17,736,0000% ) * HHERA D
AR E ABTRRGN 254% (T N\ BF
E:160%) °
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 28. BT ()
The following table discloses details of the share options held by TEREZEE (REES) MG NERER
employees (including directors) under the Scheme and the New REFE FFERNREBZE R E 2
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the current and BEFiE -

preceding years:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

ROERRERFMRTZRE

Balance Balance
at at
1.4.2008 31.3.2009
i Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled i Exercise
—EENE during during during duing —ZEENE price
Date of grant A—H the year the year the year theyear =A=1—H Exercise period per share
BB H ZBE RERARE RERTE REAXE REAEH BB TEAR BRTEE
HKS
BT
2009
BTN
Scheme
#itdl z
o
2.3.1999 660,000 = (600,000) (60,000) = - 332001 toZ 2.3.2009 0.90 ?,
19.10.1999 1,855,000 = = (20,000) = 1,835,000  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 230 2
11.2.2000 55,000 = = = = 55000 12.2.2002 toZ 11.2.2010 335 ~‘<:
30.6.2000 40,000 = = = = 40,000  1.7.2002 toZ 30.6.2010 340 g
27.7.2001 2,076,000 = = (68,000) = 2,008,000 27.7.2003 toZ 26.7.2011 240 2
o
Q.
4,686,000 = (600,000) (148,000) = 3,938,000 3
E
3
Exercisable at the 7
end of the year o
A RERITHR 3,938,000 e
N
2
Weighted average
exercise price
MEFRITEE 217 - 0.90 1.78 - 238 =
>
ol
/\;g ;;heme
it d
113
20.11.2002 1,598,000 = (48,000) (120,000 = 1,430,000  20.11.2003 toZ 19.11.2012 1.34
6.8.2004 1,436,000 = (100,000) (40,000) = 1,296,000  6.8.2005 to% 5.8.2014 128 >
9.6.2005 2,444,000 = - (80,000) = 2,364,000 9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98 E
19.6.2006 2,768,000 = = = = 2,768,000  19.6.2007 toX 18.6.2016 1.95 2
30.6.2006 1,072,000 = = (22,000 = 1,050,000  30.6.2006 toE 29.6.2016 1.95 3
30.6.2006 844,000 = (22,000) (286,000) = 536,000  30.6.2007 to% 29.6.2016 1.95 '_8‘
4.10.2007 2,888,000 = = (270,000 = 2,618,000 4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017 232 g
o
=)
13,050,000 = (170,000 (818,000) - 12,062,000 ]
Exercisable at the
end of the year
ARERITE 9,086,000

Weighted average
exercise price
IEFHITEE 189 - 138 195 - 189




1

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B B/ & & &£ AR A 7

N

Annual Report 2009 £ #§

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTTAF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

28 SHARE OPTlON SCHEMES (Continued)

28. BB AESTE (@)

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
R B R B PR BT 2 IR

Balance Balance
at
14.2007
i Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Exercise
ZEZTLE during during during during price
mA—A the year the year the year the year =) Exercise period per share
ZBE  RERRE REATE REAXH RENZHE 1T ER BRITEE
HKS
BT
2008
—ZTN\E
Scheme
it
231999 740,000 - (80,000) - - 660,000 3.3.2001 toZ 2.3.2009 0.90
19.10.1999 1,980,000 - (115,000) (10,000 - 1,855,000  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 230
1122000 65,000 - - (10,000) = 55000  12.22002 to% 11.2.2010 335
30.6.2000 40,000 - - - - 40,000 1.7.2002 toZ 30.6.2010 340
27.7.2001 2,194,000 - (108,000) (10,000) - 2,076,000  27.7.2003 toZ 26.7.2011 240
5,019,000 = (303,000) (30,000) - 4,686,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
ARERITR 4,686,000
Weighted average
exercise price
MEFRITEE 216 - 197 302 - 217
New Scheme
it
20.11.2002 2,144,000 - (522,000) (24,000) - 1,598,000  20.11.2003 toX 19.11.2012 134
6.8.2004 2,224,000 - (772,000 (16,000 - 1,436,000  6.8.2005 to% 5.8.2014 1.28
9.6.2005 2,808,000 - (336,000) (28,000) - 2444000  9.6.2006 to= 8.6.2015 1.98
19.6.2006 2,888,000 - (120,000) - - 2,768,000  19.6.2007 toX 18.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 1,272,000 - (190,000) (10,000) - 1,072,000  30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 1,156,000 - (244,000) (68,000) = 844,000  30.6.2007 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
4.10.2007 - 2,888,000 - - - 2,888,000  4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017 232
12,492,000 2,888,000 (2,184,000) (146,000) - 13,050,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
A RERITE 6,570,000
Weighted average
exercise price
IEFHITREE 1.73 232 157 178 - 189




28 SHARE OPTlON SCHEMES (Continued)

For options granted under the New Scheme, other than the 1,072,000
options granted on 30th June, 2006 which are vested immediately,

the rests are vested equally over 3 years from the date of grant.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HK$1.81 (FY08:
HK$2.28 per share). The weighted average closing price immediately
before the date of exercise is HK$1.81 (FY08: HK$2.28 per share).

In respect of the share options granted on 4th October, 2007, the
estimated fair values of the options on the dates of grant were
calculated using the Black-Scholes model. The estimated fair values
were ranging from HK$0.41 to HK$0.476 per share. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

2008
Weighted average share price HK$2.28
Exercise price HK$2.32
Expected volatility 29.95%
Expected life 3.1 to 8.7 years
Risk-free rate 412 -4.17%
Expected dividend yield 4.48%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company for the weekly closing share price for the period of 52

weeks before the date of grant.

During the year, the Group recognised total expense of HK$854,000
(FY08: HKS$1,118,000) in relation to equity-settled share-based

payment tra nsactions.

No consideration is received during the year from employees for
taking up the shares under the options (FY08: HK$28).

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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IEBRESE e
EMETJ%EEJr%U&HjZE%H%EHﬁE BRZEE
NESNA=TRAEE KRB RNRERE 21,072,000
BRI A TEREE N 8 X A HE
B=FEEMHE-

MRFRITE 2 BREMNS - NITEBEZ M
BETHRERNBT(ZEZN\TBRFE
2288 7T) o PR EEE 1T B HI AT 2 In#E T
MEARISIBT(ZEEN\MKFE 2287
JT) e

PR-ZET+LF+ANARE ZEREMNS -
REEHBBHzBREGGTATFEBDKAR
Ne—8RREBEAGTE B A FEEN
F0MBILE04768 Lo RN Z T B2 8
T

—BENF

INHEF AR B 2287 T
TEfE 23287
TEER R 1R 29.95%
a5t Bf 3NEFE8TF
J\ B Lt 3 412 -417%
T8 HR 5] ¥ 4.48%

A HDR R Ty ER A AR A B IR B8R B B ATS2
BHR BB HRHEBERESHE -

im AREERBRAEEURN 2R HHE
AR 854,000 L (ZTEEN\MBEE :
1,118,000/ 7T ) °

FRNWAREERBEEREET ZRNA
HEWRMEMNRE (ZZEZENFERFE 2848
JL) °
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Defined contribution plans:
The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees.
The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group's contributions vest fully with the

employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Defined benefit plan:

The Group also operates a defined benefit plan for a qualifying
director of the Company. Under the plan, the director is entitled

to retirement benefits based on 120% or 175.25% of final average
salary multiplied by completed months of service on attainment

of a retirement age of 60, or of age at least 50 with 25 years of
services. The assets of the fund are held separately from those of the
Company, in funds under the control of trustees. The scheme is non-

contributory on the part of the director and the Company is obliged

to meet the full cost of all benefits due to the director under the plan.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2009 were
carried by Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited, independent actuary.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related
current service cost and past service cost were measured using the
projected unit credit method. The main actuarial assumptions used

were as follows:

29. R K& AT &

REMNRETE
AEERFAEREREREEHE —RBES
Z-BESHE TN _ETRF+ — ARER
M REE GHIRY - HATDIRERERF©
ZE-ADLHE  URRIBRESFEZR
AR N RR S B R H - RIS F 2
ZEEREFRABRRZESRE BAEHE
EDRER- ARERBRED S HRE - #
RAEHEBREREME -

RERHGTE:

RARNMAREARZEETEY —HRAEREF
T8l - BEZE EFAREZARERTHF
©2120%3%175.25%3F LA 2 B iR IR F e 7~ 5%
S&A R TRMERE =+ A FRB KR
BAMZRIKERN - ZES 2 BERETEAL
HZESRHE BARRNEESFAEHR -BES
BARZTEELRHR - MARRAZNBE
ZAAEEN TEEZMARMZ REKA

BURBHMECENBRARQRDRAGE
ZEBENENR_ZTZNF=ZA=1t—H2ZR
ERMNEEZREETRN B 2EE -E
BNEME  ARRE R K BEREKA
ZBENEBEFELEREAFE -MERZ
TEREBRKDOT:

Discount rate Prim=
Expected return on plan assets TR BT &1E E R 3
Expected rate of salary increases TEEH 2R

Expected return rate on plan assets is determined by reference to

historical data of Hang Seng Index.

2.2% 2.7%
6.3% 7.0%
3.0% 5.2%

BEHFHEECRBR DL EBEER L
B BiEmEEE -



29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

Defined benefit plan: (Continued)

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets
was HK$5,775,000 (FY08: HK$11,760,000) and the present value of

the funded obligations was HK$8,226,000 (FY08: HKS$11,659,000).

The actuarial value of these assets represented 70.2% (FY08: 100.9%)
of the benefits that had accrued to members. The shortfall of
HK$2,451,000 (FY08: surplus of HK$101,000) is to be cleared over the
estimated remaining service period of the current membership of four

years.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement during

the year in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTTAF=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

29. BRIRBERIFTE (2

REBAETE: (&)

BEGERT 5184 E 2 ™ {E R5775000%
T (ZZTN\BBEE 11,760,000% 7T ) * il
ESBEZHE 582260008 T (ZTZT N\ES
B 111,659,000 7T) - WEBEZREE
BEHERKERERNZEZ702% (ZEF\H
BREE £ 100.9% ) ° 2,451,000/ T2 BRE (=
T )\BEFE 101,000 L&) BRES
BK B 2 fl 5T 0 4 AR 765 HA el 70 4F R 8

RAFERAERBAERANEG S BRR
ZEEME

2009 2008

—EENE —ET)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Current service costs 5 FRF AR 765 B AN 284 422
Interest cost F 2R A 314 313
Expected return on plan assets TEHA 5T 81 & 2= B 3R (820) (505)
Transitional liability recognised EERAEEEE - 928
Net actuarial gain recognised in the year NEBRZFHEN = (86) (84)
Administrative cost TTBUK AR = 2
(308) 1,076

The credit for the year of HK$308,000 (FY08: charge of HK$1,076,000) REE Z 5 AFKIEA308,0008 7T (ZZFZT/\8F

has been included in administrative expenses.

The actuarial loss on plan assets was HK$5,985,000 (FY08: actuarial

gain on plan assets was HK$4,105,000).

B E B X 30E 51,076,0009 70) 3 B HI| A

TREMR -

FTEIEE 2 B E 18559850008 T (Z2F
NI BRFEEFTEIEE 2 BEREIRA : 4,105,000

BIT) °

1
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)
Defined benefit plan: (Continued)
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's

obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

29. RIREFET & ()
REBATE: (1)
B 2 7175 B A8 it 82 B (EE A T 5
ABERERZSEMT

2009 2008

—EENEF —ZETN\FE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Present value of funded obligations HEBEAZRE 8,226 11,659

Fair value of plan assets FEEEZATFEE (5,775) (11,760)

Deficit (surplus) RF (EER) 2,451 (101)

Net actuarial (loss) gain not recognised AR ZFRE (BB) = (1,254) 1,606
Net liability arising from RERBINEEMEEZ

defined benefit obligation BEFE 1,197 1,505

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in

the current year were as follows:

AEREATRMNEEZRELSHUT

2009 2008

“EEBAE —TTNEF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

At 1st April RYA—H 11,659 6,019
Current service costs IR I AR 75 B AR 284 422
Interest cost B A 314 313
Actuarial (loss) gain EHE (EE) ks (4,031) 4,905
At 31st March R=A=+—H 8,226 11,659




29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)
Defined benefit plan: (Continued)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

29. RIREFET & ()
REBATE: (#)
AFRHBAEZATREZDMT

as follows:
2009 2008
—ZBTAF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1st April REA—H 11,760 7216
Expected return on plan assets TEEAEH 81 & E B R 820 505
Actuarial (loss) gain BE (B8 s (6,805) 3,600
Contributions from the employer B EH® - 439
At 31st March R=A=+—8 5,775 11,760

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan

assets are as follows:

HEEETBEAIERR
mT

(Bl

IEEZADL

Equity instruments RATEA 70 70
Debt instruments B TE 25 25
Cash RE 5 5

100 100

1
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30.

The Group as lessee:

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of certain of its office premises and computer equipment

which fall due as follows:

&M ANE
REBEEREEAN:

R AR ERET TR S EROAR
THRSMENEHZHAEREREMRE
2 REBEROS AT

2009 2008

—EZAE ZZTENF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET FHT

Within one year —&FRX 8,959 9,345
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BREHEEMTE) 1,602 6,018
10,561 15,363

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two

years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

Leases for computer equipment are negotiated for an average term of

three years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

The Group as lessor:
At 31st March, 2009, the Group had contracted with a customer
for future minimum lease payments in respect of certain computer

equipment under operating leases which fall due as follows:

MAEREZEOFH - FrEE—R HeE
EREHZ k-

BERREBZEOFE=FElm — X H2EE
W2 £

AEBEFEREAA:
R-ZEAF=A=+—B ARERBESH
T BRI LA BT - B2 R
BEASWT

2009 2008

“EEBAE —TTNEF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —F R 3,454 3,454
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFHF (BEERMTE) - 3,454
3,454 6,908

The lease is contracted for two years and rentals are fixed over the

term of the lease.

FRENASHmE HeEERENZ Lo



31.

32.

33.

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EAREE
2009 2008
—BENF ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of property, BRI AERNERE MR E
plant and equipment contracted BaomE BERKEZ
for but not provided BEARFAX
in the consolidated financial statements 322 3,435
COUNTER INDEMNITIES 32. RIER
At 31st March, 2009, the Group has provided counter indemnities to R-EBETZAFE=A=+—"8 AEEHRET
banks for performance guarantees issued by the banks to the Group's MAEERFZELN 2 BAER RRTREHE
customers in respect of the Group's service performance to these 7 8025,5380008 T (Z T N\MBFE:
customers amounting to HK$25,538,000 (FY08: HK$26,942,000). 26,942,000/ 7T ) 2 R R - MERITE 2 &R
TDRATAEEHER 2 REET
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. EEEA
In prior year, the Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$100,000 R E—FE » #9100,0008 T2 AEBISRITER
had been pledged to secure the banking facilities of the Group. No EREASERITHE 2R - RAFEL T
pledged bank deposit noted in current year. At 31st March, 2009, no MEBEBEMEERBRITIFR - R2TETNEF=
bank facilities were being utilised. A=+—H WERITHREWS A -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. EALIRS
(1) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries and ultimate holding (1) AEEHERRNEBRRRKEERRA R
company: 2R

2009
—EETAF
Nature of transaction HK$'000 HKS$'000
RBEME FET T
Fellow subsidiaries: ICES -
Sales by the Group rEEHEE 2,112 4,013
Purchases by the Group rEHEESE - 1,016
Staff costs recharged by the Group AEEBB s ETREZ 8,625 1,959
Rentals and administrative expenses ~ AEBE R 2 H & RITHAX
charged to the Group 13,888 17,741
Immediate holding company: EEERNA] -
Expenses charged to the Group AEBLHZHAX - 547
Ultimate holding company: AR 2 /] -
Sub-contracting costs charged AEBYBRZHBER
by the Group 260 195
Rentals and administrative expenses ~ AEB X2 & RITHHRAX
charged to the Group 5,443 6,753
(2) At 31st March, 2009, no contribution was required in respect Q2 RZEZAF=A=+—H HERT
of a defined benefit plan for a director of the Company (FY08: B EHREERAAR A EEM
HK$439,000) (note 29). fEH (ZZEZEN\BEEFE : 439,000% 7T )
(HI3E29) ©
(3) The Group's balances with related parties are set out in notes 20 (3) AEEEREEALTZEREGRENHE
and 24. 20824
(4)  Key management compensation is disclosed in notes 10 and 11. (4) ETEEBABMERMEIORIIAEEE-



35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March, 2009 and 31st

March, 2008 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

ML R &

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
BEZR (BB)ERAH

ELM Computer Technologies
Limited

MAERMEERAF

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

TEMRL HILK

REAR/HE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
e

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BETR
BERE/
& A

HKS2
Ordinary shares

2B E BB

HK$55,350,000
*Non-voting

deferred shares

*55,350,00078 7T
I ERERER

HK$12,000,000
Ordinary shares
12,000,000/ 7T

TR

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

35. B ARl 2518
RZZEZEAF=ZA=Z+—HBE_ZZEN\EF=
A=+—H XRAGBZWBARFRBWT:

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held directly

by the Company
AREEERT
RAEZE ML

Principal activities

FEEK

100% Investment holding, sales of
computer products and solutions

and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
REER HEERERK

R R RARHERE 1 IR 7S
(BRZERRERE) KA RS
(BRAMRE BRKEXRE)

100%  Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services

(including installation and maintenance

services) and software services

(including software development,

consulting and professional services)
HEERERRBRAAIRK

RERMRYE (BRRER

RER®) REMRY (2RERM4

HE BREREERB)
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment

and operation

Name of subsidiary

i) PNEIE=E

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau

BEZG ORM)BRAA R

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand
%

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRTK
BRERE/
HEMEE

MOP10,000
Ordinary shares
E#10,0007T

BHT50,000,000
Ordinary shares
FR#:50,000,0007C
GE L

35. (B A B 2518 (&)

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held directly

by the Company
AREEERT
RAER B G

100%

100%

Principal activities

TERK

Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services

(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEEMERRBATRR
REEHRY (BERER
RERS) REMRY (2ERMH
& BREREERS)

Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services

(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEBRERMBRTRR
REEMRE (BRZER
RERB) RRARYE (BERM
- BRREXRS)



Name of subsidiary

W2 R £

Guangzhou Automated Systems

Limited

BIEBXBESNRERAA

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited

AEREXBAAMKARAT

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

AL AR/

BEEAR /Y

People’s Republic
of China
AR SLE

Republic of China
HERE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRTR
BRERE/
HfEA

HK$10,000,000
(Note 1)
10,000,000/ 7T
(F=ET)

NTD42,000,000
(Note 2)

18 #42,000,0007T
(Ht3E2)

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FEAF=A=+ ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

35. B AR 2518 (@

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held directly

by the Company
ARFEERT
RAEES A G

Principal activities

FEEK

100%  Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services

(including installation and maintenance

services) and software services

(including software development,

consulting and professional services)
HEERERRBRAIRK

REBHERE (BELXER

RERY) KBRS (BERT

HE BRREERS)

100%  Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services

(including installation and maintenance

services) and software services

(including software development,

consulting and professional services)
HEBMERRBRTRR

RUEBIHERE (BEZER

RERY) RRMRE (BRERMA

FE BRAREERE)
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. (B A B 2518 (&)
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Country/place of

incorporation/

Nominal
value of issued
and fully paid

share capital/

Percentage of
nominal value of

issued share capital

establishment  registered capital held directly
and operation ERTR by the Company
Name of subsidiary EMRYL BYLK BRRE/ APD R EEET Principal activities
) PN SEER/ i E A RAES A G TEXEHR
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands® Uss2 100% Property holding
EBRAHE Ordinary shares MmERE
X AR
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands® Uss2 100% Property holding
EBRAHE Ordinary shares MmERE
ESS YAl
Express Profits Development British Virgin Islands® Uss2 100% Property holding
Limited EBRAHE Ordinary shares MERE
ESS YAl



35 PARTlCULARS OF SUBSlDlARlES (Continued)

Note:

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company,
carry practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to participate
in any distribution on winding up.

These companies operate in Hong Kong.

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the People's
Republic of China as a wholly foreign owned enterprise and had a
registered capital of HK$10,000,000. The amount of HK$10,000,000
disclosed above represents the amount of registered capital paid up to
31st March, 2009 and 31st March, 2008.

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited was registered in the Republic of
China and has a registered capital of NTD42,000,000. The amount of
NTD42,000,000 disclosed above represents the amount of registered
capital paid up to 31st March, 2009 and 31st March, 2008.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTTAF=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2009

35 B ARl 2518 (@)

2 :

ERFRELER (LIEMARARFEE) LE
75 ) AR A B SR MRS A B ] BRER K
BXBEAHERRAGIRNG LREXS
B2 BRI 7 (] 93K ©

BNREEZESRRERARTINAHEA
REMBFMANGBELE  HFMELRA
10,000,0007% 7T ° k£ 3 3% §& 2 © %810,000,00075
TIHRERBE-ZTTAF=A=+—HEK=
ST N\FZA=+—HAZEHFMELASE-

AEREXZAAMEERARRPERE
- & A A # A ¥42,000,0007T © XX
WE 2 EHAMA00000TEBHEE-_TT
NE=ZA=+—BR=ZZETNAE=A=+—
BrE#IMEASE-

RAFEHEER  SHENEARRTEAER

s se

g

1
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36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
On 24th April, 2009, CSC the ultimate holding company of the
Company, has entered into a conditional agreement with an
independent third party to transfer its controlling interest in the
Company to the third party (the “Share Purchase Agreement”). The
conditions precedent to the Share Purchase Agreement include, inter
alia, the completion of a conditional agreement entered into between
the Company and CSC Computer Sciences HK Limited (“CSC HK", a
fellow subsidiary of the Company) on 24th April, 2009 (hereinafter
referred to as the “Global Account Transfer Agreement”) and the
payment of a special dividend of 92.0 HK cents per share to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Special Dividend”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Global Account Transfer Agreement,
the Group will transfer its GMS business to CSC HK (the “Disposal”,
which is effected through transfer of service contracts, customer
orders, hardware, software and licensed intellectual property) for a
cash consideration of HK$125 million. The completion of the Global
Account Transfer Agreement is subject to the approval by the

independent shareholders of the Company.

The Special Dividend is conditional on, and shall not be made earlier
than the date of, the completion of the Global Account Transfer
Agreement. However, the Special Dividend and the completion of
the Global Account Transfer Agreement are not conditional on the
completion of the Share Purchase Agreement. Details of the above are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 6th May, 2009 made

by Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited and the Company.

mEBREE
RZZBTZAFMAZTEBE AR AIHRE
H“"Tcsc;@?ﬁ*”ﬂ?ﬂx?ﬂﬁﬁﬂ*
HiHE ABERARRRAFE 2= H%’é =
BTE=F ([BRHZE]) ZBRIHBELA
KR ST R I B 3E - KA B]EBECSC Computer
Sciences HK Limited ([CSC HK] * AR A & & [F]
AMBRARR =TT NFEA=ZTHEBEE
YWEGRG R (TXER [RIRRIBEEZE R
) A AR A AR R B AR RS2 AN R R AR S
208 ([ RIRE]) -

RIBIR IR AR B S 0 3 B 530 R B A
125,000,0007%8 7T B ER & R (B -+ [AICSC HKEE 38 H
IRREEREER ([HE]  BREERES
W EBEPFE B4 BHREEREMNGE
RUERLE) - IRRREEER RN REE
BARRRBLREBESAIER

#vir?ull % B RO IR 3R DAIRBRBR TR B 58 1 s IR A
RiGM I Bk B AT EFRIRIRRIAE &
Wha AR A5 B H - @ E At BRI R R A
TR 2 15 Bl B B N 3R BR B TR B 8 160 7 4R A5 O
RGN - B L FIRMFFBEIIR AR A
HEBRKB (FE)ERAREARAR
HAEZZETZNFRAARNBZARAMERE -



36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

The conditions of the Share Purchase Agreement and the Global
Account Transfer Agreements are still being satisfied. The Company

is in the midst of preparing a circular in respect of the Disposal for
consideration and approval by the independent shareholders of the
Company; and is in the process of assessing the financial impact that
may result from the Disposal. Also, the directors of the Company have
proposed the Special Dividend to the shareholders of the Company,
which is subject to the approval by shareholders of the Company in a

special general meeting to be considered by the Company.

fRE SR MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTTAF=-A=+—HLFE
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36. £EE HESEE (1)

IR RIS E R SR T
FESEA R - AR B EFE R R S AR R B
B A AEEB T RRE S REY AT
SRS AR B ISR E - o A&
AFEFRELIERARATRIEERES
RS ZEE R ARG AR TRERAAR
BB B AR A HEE -
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited

Major Subsidiaries and Associates

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited

15/F Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998  Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited

11/F Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2541 9900 Fax: (852) 2541 1338

MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392  Fax: (853) 2878 6390

In Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

Rm 2001-3, 20/F, Block 4, Dong Jun Plaza

836 Dong Feng Road East, Guangzhou, China
Tel: (8620) 8760 5518  Fax: (8620) 8767 5383

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building,
Unit 0901, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0902, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

TAIWAN

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited

3F, No. 18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road
Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, R. O. C.

Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598  Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited — Taichung Branch
10F-1, No.160, Sec. 3, Dong Sing Road, West District,

Taichung City 403, Taiwan, R. O. C.
Tel: (886) 4 2319 6598  Fax: (886) 4 2319 6599

HAB
BEBEL (FE)ERAA
BELH
2O
ERES1518
©(852) 2601 6998 fHH ¢ (852) 2601 6936

BMMBBREBRBERA
BEDH
TSR
EIEEISIE
B 5E 1 (852) 2541 9900 {HE : (852) 2541 1338

B Y

BERG CRPM)BRAA
SRPYR E £ E 51805k

I E RO 4EO-REE

T 5E 1 (853) 28786392 {HE : (853) 2878 6390

In Systems (Macao) Limited
SEPIR X A E 51805

R R R ER O 4EO-RE

T RE 1 (853) 2878 6392 {HE : (853) 2878 6390

o B K BE
EMNREEEEFEERFEERAA

B E N B R BR 8365 R IL B 5

55 U FE201£2001-3 %

FEaE ¢ (8620) 8760 5518 {HH : (8620) 8767 5383

R E

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0901, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

TiE (662) 1853206 {HEH : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0902, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

BEE: (662) 1853206 {HE : (662) 1853207
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